City Clerk File No. Ord. 16.104

Agenda No. 3.A 1st Reading

Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 16.104

TITLEORDINANCE APPROVING A 30 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A MIXED USE
MARKET RATE RENTAL PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY HC WEST
CAMPUS URBAN RENEWAL I, LI.C, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT
TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW N.I.S.A. 40A:20-1 ET SEQ.

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, HC West Campus Urban Renewal I, LLC, is an urban renewal entity, formed and
qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as
amended and supplemented, N.J.S. A. 40A:20-1 et seq. (Entity); and

WHEREAS, the Entity is the Lessee of certain property under a Ground Lease dated September
25, 2015, designated as Block 21902.04, Lot 4, located on NJCU West Campus, south of Carbon
Place between Route 440 and West Side Avenue, on the City’s Official Tax map, consisting of
approximately 1.36 acres which will be known by the street address of 23 University Place
Boulevard, and more specifically described by metes and bounds, in the application (Property);
and

WHEREAS, the Property is located within the NJCU West Campus Redevelopment Plan Area,
ag required by N.J.8. A. 40A:20-4 and N.I.S.A. 40A:12A-5(g); and

WHEREAS, the Project received site plan approval from the Planning Board on October 20,
2015 to comsiruct a mixed use market rate rental project to consist of a five (5) story building
with approximately one hundred and sixty-three (163) units; 10,048 square feet of
commercial/retail space; and approximately one hundred seventy-seven (177) parking spaces for
retail and residential tenants (Project); and

WHEREAS, by application dated March 23, 2016, as revised and finalized on June 1, 2016, the
Entity applied for a 30 year Long Term Tax Exemiption; and

WHEREAS, HC West Campus Urban Renewal [, LLC, has agreed to:
1. pay the greater of (i} the Minimum Annual Service Charge or (i) 11% of the Awnual
Gross Revenue, which sum is initially estimated to be $465,254; and which shall be

subject to statutory staged increases over the term of the tax exemption; and

2 pay an annual sum equal to 2% of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge as an
Administrative Fee initially estimated at $9,305; and

3 provide employment and other economic opportunities for City residents and businesses;
and

4, pay to the City, for remittance to Hudson County, an additional amount equal to 5% of
the Annual Service Charge estimated to be $23,263; and

5. pay the sum of $339,222 to the City’s Affordable Housing Trust Fund;
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6. execute a Project Employment & Contracting Agreement; execute a Project Labor
Agreement pursnant to Section 304-33 of the Jersey City Municipal Code, and comply
with the Living Wage Ordinance, Section 3-76 of the Jersey City Municipal Coode; and

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the relative benefiis of the project outweigh the
cost of the tax exemption, for the following redsons: '

L. the City’s Tax Assessor estimates that the property will generate a land tax of only
$84,846, whereas, the Annnal Service charge as estimated, will generate revenue to the
City of at least $465,254 upon Substantial Completion;

2. the Project will create approximately 125 jobs during construction and 25 new permanent

jobs;
3. the Praject will stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of businesses in the

surrounding area;

4. the Project will further the overall redevelopment objectives of the NJCU West Campus
Redevelopment Plan Area;

5. the City’s impact analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk, indicates that the
benefits of the Project will owiweigh the cosis to the City; and

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the tax exemption is impotiant in obfaining
development of the project and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants for the
following reasons:

1. the relative stability and predictability of the Amnual Service Charge will make the
Project more attractive to investors needed to finance the Project;

o2 the relative stability and predictability of the Annuat Service Charge will allow the owner
to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance to the building over
the life of the Project, which will atiract tepants to the Project and insure the likelihood of
the success of the Project; and

WHEREAS, HC West Campus Urban Renewal I, LLC, has initially complied with Executive
Order 2002-005 concerning "Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status" by filing appropriate
letters of its lobbyists in the Office of the City Clesl; and

WHEREAS, HC West Campus Urban Renewal I, LLC, has agreed to execute a Project
Employment & Contracting Agreement, and a Project Labor Agreement, and also to comply
with the requirements of Section 3-76 of the Jersey City Municipal Code concerning required
Wage, Benefit and Leave standards for any building service workers.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE I'T ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey
City that:

A. The March 23, 20186, as revised and finalized on June ¥, 2016, application of HC West
Campus Urban Renewal 1, LLC, an urban renewal company, formed and qualified to do business
under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and
supplemented, N.I.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., a copy of which is on file in the office of the City
Clerk, property designated as Block 21902.04, Lot 4, located on NJCU West Campus, south of
Carbon Place between Route 440 and West Side Avenue, on the City’s Official Tax map,
consisting of approximately 1.36 acres, and which will be known by the street address of 23
University Place Boulevard, more specifically described by metes and bounds in the application,
is hereby approved.

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a tax exemption
Financial Agreement. The Financial Agreement shall include at a minimum the following terms
and conditions:
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10,

11.

Term: the earlier of 35 years from the adoption of the within Ordinance or 30 years from
the date the project is Substantially Complete;

Annual Service Charge: each year the greater of:

(a)  the Minimum Anmual Service Charge is $84,846, but will be $465,254 upon
Substantial Completion, whether or not the Project is occupied; or

1), 11% of the Annual Gross Revenue, which initial sum is estimated to be $465,254,
and which shall be subject to stafutory increases during the term of the tax
exempliorn.

Administrative Fee: 2% of the prior year's Annual Service Charge estimated to be
$9.305;

County Payment: 5% of the Annual Service Charge to the City for remittance by the City
to Hudson County estimated to be $23,263;

Project; A mixed use market rate rental project to consist of a five (5) story building with
approximately one hundred and sixty-three (163) units; 10,048 square feet of
commercial/retail space; and approximately one hundred seventy-seven (177) parking
spaces for retail and residential tenants;

Affordable Housing Trust Fund: $1,500 per unit or $244,500; and $1.50 per square fool x
63,148 square feet of commercial/retail and parking space; for a total of $339,222. Such
funds will be accelerated and and are non-refundable and may not be transferred in the
event of a termination or expiration of the Financial Apreement;

Staged Adjustrents:

{(2) Stage One: years 1-9, Anmual Service Charge shall be 11% of Annual Gross
Revenue;

(b) Stage Two: years 10-13, Amnual Service Charge or 20% of the amount of the
taxes otherwise due;

{c) Stage Three: years 14-17, Anmual Service Charge or 40% of the amount of the
taxes otherwise due;

d) Stage Four: vears 18-21, Annual Service Charge or 60% of the amount of the
taxes otherwise due;

(e) Final Stage: Beginning on the 1st day of the 22nd year through the date the tax
exemption expites, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service Charge
or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due.

Project Employment & Coniracting Agreement: an obligation to execute a Project
Employment and Confracting Agreement to insure employment and other economic
benefits to City residents and businesses;

Project Labor Agresment; an obligation to execute a Project Labor Agreement pursuant
to Section 304-37(3) of the Municipal Code.

Compliance with the Living Wage Ordinance, Section 3-76 of the Jersey City Municipal
Code for any building service workers serving the Project.

The Affordable Housing Trust Fund contribution: payments shall be due on execution of
the Financial Agreemnent, but in no event later than 30 days from the date of the adoption
of the within ordinance, If the Financial Agreement is not executed for any reason
whatsoever, interest shall accrue on such payments as of the 31% day at the highest rate
permitted for unpaid real estate taxes.
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12, This Ordinance will sunset and the Tax Exemption wiil terminate unfess construction of
the Project: 1) commences no later than two (2) years from the date the within ordinance
is adopted; and 2) is Substantially Complete no later than five (5) years from the date of
adoption of the within Ordinance. C

C. The City Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of the Ordmance and Financial Agreement to-
the Chief Financial Officer of the county and to the County Counsel, for information purposes,
within ten (10) calendar days foﬂowmg the later of the effective date of an ordinance following
its final adoption by the governing body approving the tax exemptmn or the execution of the
financial agreement by the urban renewal entity.

b, The application is on file with the office of the City Clerk. The Financial Agreement and
Project Employment and Contracting Agreement shall be in substantially the form on file in the
Office of the City Clerk, subject to such modification as the Business Administrator of
Corporation Counsel deerns appropriate or necessary.

E. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

F. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth
therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies
of the Jersey City Code.

G. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner provided by law.

. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed
to change any chapter munbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the
codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the
existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing
provisions.

NOTE: ' ATl material is new; therefore underlining has been omitted.
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face
and repealed matter by ifalic.

APPROVEDAS TO LEGAL FCRM : APPROVED:

APPROVED:

Corporation Counsel Business Admintstraior

Cettification Requited O
Not Required i

f




ORDINANCE FACT SHEET — NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any Ordinance that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the Ordinance.

Full Title of Ordinance

An Ordinance to Approve A Thirty Year Tax Exemption for a Market Rate Mixed-Use Rerital Project
to be Constructed by HC West Campus I Urban Renewal, LLC, An Urban Renewal Entity pursuant io

the Long term Tax Exemption Law N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et. seq. Designated as Block 21902.04 Lot 4 on
the City's Tax Map and known as 23 University Place Blvd.

Initiatox
Department/Division | Office of the Mayor Office of the Deputy Mayor
Name/Title Marcos D. Vigil Deputy Mayor -
Phone/email 201-547-6542 mvigil@jcnj.org

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.}

Ordinance Purpose

The applicant, HC West Campus Urban Renewal |, LLC, is applying for a thirty (30) year tax
abatement under N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. [t will be new construction of a five (5) story
mixed-use, market rate rental project within the NJCU West Campus Redevelopment Plan.

The application fee of $9,500 was paid. The Fiscal Impact Cost Frojection shows positive
revenue to cost.

The proposed project will be a five (5) story mixed-use, market rate rental project. The
building will contain approximately one hundred and sixty-three (163) dwelling units, 10,048
square feet of commercialiretail space. There will be one hundred and seventy-seven (177}
parking spaces.

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate.

Marces D. Vigil Date
Deputy Mayor




DRAFT

' DATE: May 12, 2016
TO: John Hallanan (For distribution to City Council and City Clerk)
FROM: Al Cameron, Fiséal Officer - Tax Collecto'r’s Office

- SUBJECT: THIRTY YEAR TAX ABATEMENT: MIXED - USE, MARKET- RATE
RENTAL PROJECT — HC West Campus Urban Renewal I, LLC
Block 21902.04 Lot 4

CC: M. Cosgrove, E. Borja, J. Monahan, E. Toloza, M. Vigil, R. Kakoleski, R. Lavarro, G. Corrado

INTRODUCTION:

The applicant, HC West Campus Urban Renewal |, LLC, is applying for a thirty (30)
year tax abatement under N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. - It will be new construction of
a five (5) story mixed-use, market rate rental project within the NJCU West
Campus Redevelopment Plan. The application fee of $9,500 was paid.

LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY:

The -applicant entered into a ground lease with New Jersey City University for

_ property located on the West Campus south of Carbon Place between Route 440
and West Side Avenue. The project is referred to as West Campus Block 3. 1t will
be known as 23 University Place Blvd.

PROPERTY TO BE CONSTRUCTED:

The proposed project will be a five (5) story mixed-use, market rate rental project.
The building will contain approximately one hundred and sixty-three (163)
dwelling units, 10,048 square feet of commerciallretail space. There will be -
parking spaces for retail and residential tenants totaling one hundred and
seventy-seven (177). The residential units are as follows: o

Unit Type Number of units
Studio ‘ 27
One Bedroom 112
Two Bedroom - 24
Total ' 163

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROQJECT COST:

The cost of construction estimated at $39,591,532 is certified by Dean Marchetto,

the applicant’s architect. Total Project Cost is projected at $47,447,682.
H € West Campus UR | LLC Sum.dOCX

6/7/2016 12:38 PM
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'CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE:

The applicant estimates construction will begin in August 2016 with completion
within fourteen (14) months.

ESTIMATED JOBS CREATED:

The applicant estimates creation of one hundred fifty (125) jobs during
Construction. Post-construction jobs will be approximately twenty (20)
permanent positions. The applicant will execute both a Project Employment and
Contracting Agreement and a Project Labor Agreement.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND CONTRIBUTIONS:

HC WEST CAMPUS URBAN RENEWAL I LLC AHTF PAYMENT

Rate Amount

Residential Units . 163 $1,500 $244,500.00
Square footage Parking 10,048 $1.50  $15,072.00
Commercial space 53,100 $1.50  $79,650.00
Total AHTF Payment $339,222.00

The property owned by New Jersey City University is currently tax exempf. The
new assessment for the land based upon the proposed project of Block 21902.04

" Lot 4 is $1,134,000. The proposed Improvements are assessed at $7,735, 600. At

the current tax rate of $74.82 the estimated annual land tax is $84,846.

PROPOSED ABATEMENT:

The applicant has requested a term of the lesser of thirty five (35) years from the
date of approval of an ordinance approving the abatement or thlrty (30) years
from substantial completion of the project.

The Applicant proposes an Annual Service Charge of eleven percent (11%) of
Annual gross reventue, a two percent (2%) City- administrative fee and a five
percent (5%) service charge to Hudson County. ‘

STAGED ADJUSTMENTS

Beginning the first day of year ten (10) through the end of year th|rteen (13) it

would be the greater of the Annual Service Charge or twenty percent (20%) of
conventional taxes otherwise due.
H C West Campus UR | LLC Sum.dOCX
6/7/2016 12:38 PM
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Beginning the first day of year fourteen (14) through the end of year seventeen
(17) it would be the greater of the Annual Service Charge or forty percent (40%) of
conventional taxes otherwise due.

Beginning the first day of year eighteen (18) through the end of year twenty-one
(21) it would be the greater of the Annual Service Charge or sixty percent (60%) of
conventional taxes otherwise due.

Beginning in year twenty-two (22) through the end of year thirty (30) it would be
the greater of the Annual Service Charge or eighty percent (80%) of conventional
taxes otherwise due.

Béginning in year thirty-one (31) the project would pay full conventional tax.

The Tax Assessor’s phase-in schedule assesses the Land at $1,134,000 and the
lmprovements at $ 7,735,600 for the completed project. The PILOT would be the
greater of the Annual Service Charge (ASC) or the result of the staged
adjustments.

PROPOSED REVENUE TO THE CITY:

At full occupancy the Good Faith estimated annual revenue is $4,229,585. The
Annual Service charge at the rate of eleven percent (11%) is $465,254. The City
Administrative fee at two percent {2%) would be $9,305 and the Hudson County
fee of five percent (5%) would be $23,263. ‘

The Fiscal Impact Cost Projection included shows positive revenue to cost.

H C West Campus UR I LLC Sum.docx
6/7/2016 12:38 PM




FISCAL IMPACT COST PROJECTION (MARKET RATE RENTAL UNITS - 30 YEAR)

Black: 21902.04 Lot: 4 Loc: 23 UNIVERSITY PLACE BLVD. (BLOCK 3)

Market Rate Renfaf Units Demographic Muftiplers . Annual Total
(Transit Oriented Development)* Expenditures Annual Expenditures
Number . Total Per Capita Per Pupif .
Planned Development of Units Household Students Residents Students Munigipal Per School District Municipal School District Total
i Studio ’ 27 1.000 0.000 27.00 0.00 $1,181.83 $3,873.00 $31,809.38 $0.00 $31,909.38
i 1 Bedroom M2 1.421 0.050 159.15 5.80 $1,181.83 $3,673.00 $188,090.42 $20,668.60 $208,650.22
‘ 2 Bedroom 24 2.012 0,120 48.29 2.88 $1,181.83 $3,873.00 $57,068.15 $10,578.24 $67,645.39
TOTAL '+ 163 234.44 8.48 $277,0687.95 $31,147.04 $308,214.99
- 1. Tofat Municipat Ratables $5,697,768,597 |4, CY 2015 Budget $535,307,187{6. Population of Jersey City 9. Increase in Setvices
‘ . Incurred Per Development 3 308,214.9%
i 7 {2010 Gensus) 247 597
: 10. Anticipated Gross PILOT (1st Year)
2. Residential Ratables $3,278,586,058 7. Per Capita Municipal Cost 11% AGR $ 465,254 .35
Commercial Ratables $1,512,274,524 2% Admin $ 9,305.09
$1,181.83 Less Land Tax (74.82) $ (54,845.88)
3. Residential Ratables 8. Annual Expenditures Per Student™ 11. 1st Year Net PILOT $ 389,713.56
as a Percentage of
Total Ratables 54.66%|45. Residential Portion - $292,617,271 $3,673.00{12. Implied Surplus {Cost} $ 81,498.57

Classic Average costing approach for projecting the impact of populfation change and local Municipal and School District costs NEW ASSESSMENT AFTER IMPROVEMENTS

LAND:
BLDG:

1,134,000
7,735,600

*Saurcs: New Jersey Dermographic Multiplers; Frofie of the Ocoupants of Residential and Nenresidentiat Developrent; Lisfok;'n, November 2006
**Source: 2015-2018 Jersey Cilty Municipal Cost Per Fupil




SERVICE CHARGE VS CONVENTIONAL NICU WEST CAMPUS (BLOCK 3)

; *ASSUMING 74.82 TAX RATE WITH 2% ANNUAL INCREASE BLOCK 21902.04
' LOT 4
i NEW ASSESSMENTS BASED ON TAX ASSESSOR ANALYSIS :
) LAND 1,134,000 ‘ COUNTY 5% EXISTING ASSESSMENT 1,134,000
: BLDG 7,735,600 ADMIN 2% :
B TOTAL 8,869,600 ’ PROJECTED SERVICE CHARGE (15T YEAR) 465,254
“ .
: Current Taxes On
ASCw/ Phase-In Less | ASCw/ 2% Annual | ASCwy 2% Annual Estimated Conventional Taxes | Staged | Conventional Taxes EXISTING
YEAR Land Tax Credit increass Incease & Phase-In County Admin On NEW Assessment Adj Rate | at51% {Estimated) Assessment Eand Tax
1 380,408 465,254 465,254 23,263 9,305 663,623 333,448 84,846 84,846
2 388,015 474,559 474,559 23,728 9,491 676,896 345,217 86,543 86,543
3 395,777 484,050 484,050 24,203 9,681 550,434 352,121 88,274 88,274
4 403,692 493,731 493,731 24,687 9,875 704,243 359,164 90,039 90,039
5 411,765 503,606 503,606 25,180 10,072 718,327 365,347 91,840 91,840
[ 420,001 513,678 513,678 25,684 10,274 : 732,694 373,674 . 93,677 93,677
7 428,401 523,952 523,952 26,198 10,479 747,348 381,147 95,550 95,550
i 8 436,969 | - 534,431 534,431 26,722 10,689 762,295 388,770 97,461 97,461
L 9 445,709 545,119 545,119 27,256 10,802 777,541 386,546 © 99,410 99,410
j 10 454,623 556,022 556,022 27,801 11,120 793,001 | 20% 404,477 101,399 101,399
i 11 463,715 567,142 567,142 28,357 11,343 808,053 20% 412,566 103,427 103,427
; 12 472,920 578,485 578,485 28,924 11,570 825,132 20% 420,318 105,495 105,485
13 482 449 590,055 " 590,055 29,503 11,801 841,635 20% | 429,234 107,605 107,605
14 492,098 601,856 501,856 30,093 12,037 858,468 40% 437,315 108,757 109,757
15 501,940 613,823 613,893 30,695 12,278 875,637 40% 446,575 111,952 111,952
16 511,979 626,171 626,171 31,309 12,523 893,150 40% 455,506 |- C 114,191 114,191
17 522,219 638,694 638,694 31,935 12,774 911,013 40% 464,617 116,475 116,475
18 532,663 651,468 . 651,468 32,573 13,029 925,233 60% 473,909 118,805 118,805
19 543,316 664,497 664,497 33,225 13,290 [ 947,818 60% 483,387 121,181 121,181
20 554,183 677,787 677,787 33,889 13,556 966,774 60% 493,055 123,604 123,604
| 21 565,266 691,343 691,343 34,567 13,827 986,110 60% 502,916 126,077 126,077
' 22 676,067 |, 705,170 804,665 40,233 16,083 1,005,832 80% 512,974 128,598 128,598
| 23 589,589 719,273 820,759 41,038 16,415 -1,025,948 80% 523,234 131,170 131,170
24 703,380 733,659 837,174 41,859 16,743 1,046,467 80% 5-33,598 133,793 | . 133,793
A 25 717,448 748,332 853,817 42,656 - 17,078 1,067,397 80% 544,372 136,169 136,469
; 26 731,797 763,299 870,996 43,550 17,420 1,088,745 80% 555,260 135,199 139,199
27 746,433 778,564 888,416 44,421 17,758 1,110,520 80% 566,365 141,983 141,983
i 28 761,362 794,136 |- 906,184 45,309 18,124 1,132,730 80% 577,692 144,822 144,822
29 776,589 810,018 924,308 46,215 18,486 1,155,385 80% 589,246 147,719 147,719
i 30 792,121 826,219 | - 942,784 47,140 18,856 1,178,492 80% 601,031 150,673 150,673
. TOTAL 16,402,969  18,874,461° 19,845,004 ° 992,250 396,900 26,921,930 13,730,184 3,442,034 3,442,034

ASC phase-in reflects annual 2% increase in conveitional taxes AND Gross Rents
Projected figures subject to rounding discrepancies




TIER 3 - FINANCIAL AGREEMENT (30 YEAR)

Rev. 6/23/16

Long Term Tax Exemption

NJS.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.

Residential Rental or Residential Condominium -

Re: 23 University Place Boulevard (to be known as).
Approximately 1.36 Acres
Block 21902.04, Lot 4
NICU West Campus Redevelopment Plan Area

PREAMBLE

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, [Agreement] is made the day ef , 2016,
by and between HC WEST CAMPUS URBAN RENEWAL I, LLC, an urban renewal entity
forrﬁed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law
“of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., having its principal office at
22 Maple Avenue, Morristown, NJ 07960, and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY,; a Mum'cipal
Corporetion of the State of New Jersey, having its principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey
City, New Jersey 07302 [City]. ' ‘,
| RECITALS
- WITNESSETH:

~ WHEREAS, the Entity is the Ground Lessee pursuant to Ground Lease dated September
25, 2015, of certaén property designated as Block 21902.04, Lot 4, located on NICU West
Campus, south of Carbon Place between Route 440 and West Side Avenue, on the City’s

* Official Tax Map, consisting of approximately 1.36 acres, which will be known by the street
 address of 23 University Place Boulevard, Jersey City, and more particularly described by the
metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1 to this Agreement; and
WHEREAS, this property is located within the boundaries of the NJCU West
* Redevelopment Plan Atrea; and | '
WHEREAS, the Entity plans to construct a mixed-use, five (5) story mixed-use market
rate rental Project with approximately one hundred and sixty-three (163) units; 10,048 square

feet of commercial/retail space; and approximately one hundred seventy-seven (177) parking-

spaces for retail and residential tenants; and

WHEREAS, on October 20, 2015 the Project received site plan approval from the




Planning Board; and
WHEREAS, on March 23, 2016, as revised and finalized on June 1, 2016, the Entity
filed an Appliéation with the City for a long term tax exemption for the Project; and A ,
| "WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance _on , 2016, the Municipal

Council approved a ldng term tax exemption for the Project and authorized the execution of a
Financial Agreement; and |
. WHEREAS, the City made the following findings: |
A Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs:

1. the current real estate tax should gererate revenue of approximately
$84.846, whereas, the Annual Service charge as estimated, will generate :
revenue to the City of at least $465,254;

2. as required by ordi’nance 13-088, the Entity shall pay the City the total
: sum of $339,222, with $113,074 on or before the effective date of the
ordinance approving the Financial Agreement, and the balance of
$226,148 as an affordable housing contribution as required by the

ordinance;

3. it is expected that the Project will create approximately one hundred
twenty-five (125) new construction jobs and twenty-five (25) new
permanent full time jobs;

4, the project should stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of

existing local business and to the creation of new businesses, which cater
to the new occupants;

5. fhe Project will further the objectives of the NJCU West Campus
Redevelopment Plan, and will include the development of vacant property;

6. the City’s Impact Analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk,
indicates that the benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City; and
B. Assessment of the Importénce of the Tax Exemption in obtaining development of
the project and inﬂuenciﬁg the locational decisions of probable occupants:

1. the relative stability and predictability of the annual sérvice charges will
make the Project more attractive to investors and lenders needed to
finance the PIOJ ect; and :

2. the relat1ve stability and predictability of the service charges will allow the
owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of

2




g maintenance to. the building over the life of the Pfoject which will attract
occupants to the Project, insure the likelihood of stabilized rents to tenants
and the success of the Project; and

3. " have a positive impact on the surrounding area.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and
for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows
' ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.1  Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption
Law, ae amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., Executive Order of the Mayor
2015-007, Disclosure of Lobbyist Status, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance 16-_ ,, which
authorized the execution of this Agreement. It being expressly understood and agreed that the
City expressly relies upon the facts, data, and representations contained in the Applieation,
attached hereto as Ethbit 3, in granting this tax exemption.
Section 1.2  General Definitions

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used in
this Agreement, the fellowing terms shall have the following meanings: .

1. Allowable Net Profit- The amount arrived at by applying, on a non-accrual basis,

the Allowable Profit Rate to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(c), each year of

the tax exemption.

fi. Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived .

at by adding 1.25% to the annual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity’s initial
permanent mortgage fmancmg If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a
governmental agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, 1f payable on a per
annum basis, shall be considered.as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage
financing, or if the financing is internal or undertaken by a related party, the Allow_able Profit
Rate shall be the greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at by adding 1.25% per
annum to the interest rate per annum Whieh,the murﬁcipality determines to be the prevaﬂing rate
on moﬂgage financing on comparable improvements in Hudson County. The prolvisions of

N.LS.A. 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herein by reference.




7 iii. Annual Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the
Project of whatever Kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees '
from third parties, including but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, or as
user fees or for any other services. No deductions will be allowed for operating or maintenance
costs, including, but not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal
~ and insurance charges, whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third party.

iv.  Annual Service Ché:rge - The amount the Eﬁtity has agreed to pay the City each

year for municipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the
Improvements, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12. It shall include a payment for all anniual excess
profit. '

V. Auditor's Report ~ A complete annual financial statement outlining the financial
status of the Project, which shall also include a cestification of Total Project Cost and clear
computation of the anﬁual not accrued, Net Profit and annual Excess Profit due to the Cify, if
any. The contents of the Auditor’s Report shall have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles and shall contain at a minimum the following: a balance sheet, a
statement of income, a statement of retained earnings or changes in stockholders’ equity, a
statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies, notes to financial statements and
appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of operations, cash flows and any other
items required by Law. The Auditor’s Report shall be certified as to its conformance with such
principles by a certified public accountant who is licensed to practice that profession in the State
of New Jersey. '

t

vi. Certificate of Occunancv A document, Whether temporary or permanent, issued

by the City authorizing occupancy of a buzldlng, in whole or in part, pursuant to N.J.S.A.
52:27D-133.

vii.  Debt Service - The amount required to make annual payments of principal and
interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other
financing including returns on institutional equity ﬁnanciné and market rate related party debt
for the Project for a period equal to the term of this Agreement.

viii.  Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation
imposed upbn the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, ‘be.yond any
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applicable grace or cure periods.

iX. Entity - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean HE West Campus
Urban Renewal, LLC, which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to N.I.S.A. 40A:20-5. It
shall also include any subsequent purchasers or successors in, interest of the Project, provided
they are formed and operate under the Law. |

X. Improvements or Project - Any building, structure or fixture permanently affixed

o the land and to be construcied and tax exempted under this Agreement.

xi.  In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which

the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.JI.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-
129 et seq. ‘

xil.  Land Taxes - Thé amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on which the
project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land Taxes are not
exempt; however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge.

xiii. Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including

approved grace périods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax
Collector.

xiv. Law - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and
supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.; Executive Order of the Mayor 15-007, relating to long
.tei‘ln'tax exemption, as it may be supplemented; Ordinance 02-075 requiring Disclosure of
Lobbyist Status and Ordinance | , which authorized the execution of this Agreement and
| all other relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations.

xv.  Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall

be (a) until Substantial Completion the amount of the total taxes levied against all real property
in the area covered by the Project in the last full tax year in which the area was subject to
taxation, which amount the parties expect will be $84,846; and (b) upon Substaniial Completioﬁ,
the sum of $465,254 per year, which sum is equal to the estimated Annual Service Charge.
Folloﬁng Substantial Completion, the Minimum Annual ServiceCharge set forth in
subsection (b) shall be paid in each year in which the Annual Service Charge, calculated
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12 or this Agreement, would be less than the Minimum Annual

Service Charge set forth in subsection (b).




‘ xvi.  Net Profit - The Annual Gross Revenues of the Entity less all annual operating
and non-operating expenscs of the Entity, all determined in accordance with geﬁerally accepted
accounting principles, but:” , |

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Annual Service charges paid pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12; (b) all annual payments to the City of annual excess profits pursuant to
N.JS.A. 40A:20-15 or N.LS.A. 40A:20-16; (c) an annual amount sufficient to amortize
(utilizing the straight line method-equal annual amounts) the Total Project Cost and all capital
costs determined in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles, of any other entity
whose revenue is included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement;
(d) all reasonable annual operating expenses of ‘thei'Entity and any other entity whose revenﬁe 18
iﬁcluded in the computation of excess proﬁté including the cost of ail management fees,
brokerage commissions, insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting,
or other profes'si.onal service fees, utilities, building maintenance ‘costs, building and office
supplies and payments into repair or maintenance reserve accounts; (e) all ﬁayments of rent
including but not limited to giound rent by the Entity; (f) all debt service; and

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on
debt, except interest which is part of debt.service, income_ taxes or salaries, bonuses or other
compensation paid, directly or indjiectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or
officers, partners or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity.

xvii. Pronouns - He or it éhall_ mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the
singular, as well as the plural, as context requires.

xviil. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the Project, in whole

or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the first date on which the
Project feceives, or is eligible to receive, any Certificate of Occupancy, whether temporary or
permanent, for any portion of the Project. '

xix. Termination - Any act or omission which by operation of the- ferms of this
Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption. |

xx.  Total Project Cost - The total cost of constructing the Project through the date a

Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set forth

in N.J.S.A, 40A:20-3(h). There shall be excluded from Total Project Cost the actual costs




incurred by the Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which
are associated with site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials or
contaminants i1; accordance with State or Federal law and any other extraofdina:ry costs incurred
including the cost of demolishing structures, relocatidn or removal of public utilities, bos’é of
relocating displaced residents or buildings and the clearing of title.

ARTICLE 11 - APPROVAL

Section 2.1  Approval of Tax Exemption

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be
constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Ag—reement and
~ the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain proi)erty known
on the Official Tax Assessor’s Map of the City as: Block 21902.04, Lot 4, located on NJCU
West Campus, south of Carboﬁ Place between Route 440 and West Side Avenue, which will be
 known by the street address of 23 University Place Boulevard, Jersey City, and described by
' metes and bounds in Exhibit 1 attached hereto.
Section 2.2  Approval of Entity

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as
Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law;
has been reviewed and. approved by the Commissioner of the Department of Community Affairs;
and has been filed with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson
County Clerk, all in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5. '
Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed

Entity represents that it will construct a mixed-use, five (5) story mixed-use market rate
rental Project with approximately one hundred and sixty—three (163) units; 10,048 square feet of
commercial/retail space; and approximately one hundred seventy-seven (177) parking spaces for
retail and residentiaﬂ tenants; all of which is specifically described in the Application dated May
18, 2016 attached hereto as Exhibit 3.
Section 2.4  Construction Schedule

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the
Project in accordahce with the FEstimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5,

-and in compliance with aily Redevelopment Agreement.




Section 2.5  Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that it is the Ground Lessee under a Ground Lease of the property
upon which the PIO_] ect is to be constructed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the
Improvements will be used, managed and controlled for the purposes set forth in this Agreement
and any Redevelopﬁeﬁt Agreement.
Section 2.6 Financial Plan

The Entity represenfs that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the
Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth a good faith estimate of Total
Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of funds, the interest
rates to be paid on construction financing, the sourcé and amount of paid-in capital, and the
terms of any mortgage amortization. ‘
Section 2.7 vGood Faith Estimate of Initial Rents

The Entity represents that its good faitﬁ projections of the initial rents and other revenue
to the Project are set forth in Fxhibit 7. |

ARTICLE ITI - DURATION OF AGREEMENT !

Section 3.1  Term _
So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it.is understobd and

agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement shéll remain in effect for the carlicr of 35 years

from the date of the adoption of Ordinance on . , 2016, which approved the tax

exemption or 30 years from the date of Substantial Completionhof the Project, but subject to the
commencement date and Substantial Completion mandate of Ordinance 16- . The tax
exemption shall only be effective during the period of usefulneés of the Project and shall
continue in force only while the-Project is owned by a corporation or association formed and
operating under the Law.

| ARTICLE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE

Section 4.1  Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Fntity shall make the following annual
payments to the City for services provided to the Project:

i. ‘City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Annual




Service Charge or an Annual Service Charge equal to 11% of the AnﬁUal Gross Revenue. The
Annual Service Charge shall be billed initialljf based upon the Entity’s estimates of Annual
Cross Revenue, aftached hereto as Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Anmual Service Charge shall be
- adjusted in accordance with this Agreement
7 ii. County Service Charge: an amount equal to 5% of the Municipal Annual Service
Charge shall be paid to the City and remitted by the City to the County.

iii. The Minimum Annual Service Charge pursuant to Section I.ZXV(A) shall be due
beginning on the effective date of this Agreement. The Minimum Annual Service Charge
pﬁrsuant to Section 1.2xv(b) shall be due upon Substantial Completion of the Project. The City
Service Charge and the County Annual Service Charge shall be due on the first day of the month
following the Substantial Completion of the Project.‘ In the event the Entity fails to timely pay
the Minimum Annual Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall
bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on land until
paid.

Section 4.2 Staged A&justments

The Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the tax
exemption in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12(b) as follows:

i - Stage Oﬁe' From the 1st day of the month following Substantial Completion until
the last day of the 9th year, the Annual Service Charge shall be 11% of Annual Gross Revenue;

ii. Stage Two: Beginning on the 1% day of the 10th year following Substantial
Completion until the last day “of the 13th year, an ‘amount equal to the greater of the Annual
Service Charge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the
land and Improvements; |

iit. Stage Three: Beginning on the 1st day of the 14th year following the Substantial
Comiaietion until the last day of the 17th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual
Service Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the
land and Improvements; | |

| 1v. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1st day of the 18th year following Substantial
Completion until the last day of the 21st year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual

Service Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the




land and Improvements;

| V. Final Stage: Beginning on the 1st day of the 22nd year following Substantial

Complétion through the date the tax _exémption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the

Annual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes othérwise due on the assessed value of

the land and Improvements. |

Section 4.3 Land Tax

 The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge, if the Entity is obligated by

the Ground Lease to make Land Tax Payménts, including any tax on the pre-existing

improvements, payment must be timely made in order to be entitled to a Tand Tax credit against

the Annual Service Charge for the subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the

amount, without interest, of the Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding guarterly
. installments made by it against the Annual Service Charge. In any quérter that the Entity fails to

make any Land Tax Payments when due and owing, such delinquency shall render the Entity

incligible for any Land Tax Payment credit against the Annual Service Charge for that quarter.

No credit will be applied against the Annual Service Charge for a partial payment of Land Taxes.

In addition, the City shall have, among this remedy and any other remedies (including the
appointment of a rent receiver), the right to proceed against the urban renewal entity personally
pursuant to the Leaschold Taxing Act, N.J.S.A. 54:4-2.3 and/or declare a Default and terminate
this Agreement.
Section 4.4  Quarterly Installments / Interest

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly
installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to
adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar year.
In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge or any other charge due under
this agreement, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of
unpaid taxes or tax liens on the land until paid in full.
Section 4.5  Administrative Fee

The Entity shall also pay an amnual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the

Annual Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two
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(2%) percent of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due oﬁ
or before December 31st of each year, and collected in the same manner as the Annual Service
Charge. ' l
Section 4.6 ~ Affordable Housing Contribution and Remedies

A Contribution. The Entity will pay the City the sﬁm of $244,500 or $1,500 x 163
units; and $94,722 or $1.50 x 63,148 square feet of cominercial/retail and parking space, for a
total of $339,222 as a contribution. The sum shall be due and payable as follows:

i. 1/3 on or before the effective adoption date of the Ordinance approving the tax

exemption;
ii. 1/3 on or before the issuance of the first of any construction permit or commencement of

constructi(_)n, for the Project, but no later than six months after the date of the Financial
Agreement; and |
1ii. 1/3 on or before the date the first of any Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the
Project, but no later than twenty-four (24) months after the date of the Financial
Agreement.
Section 4.7 Material Con(iitions
It is expressly agfeed and understood that.the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum
Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, including Annual Net Profits and any
adjustments thereto, Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions, and any interest
thereon, are Material Conditions of this Agreement. A

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1  Project Employment and Contracting Agreement
In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other
economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the‘tem'ls and conditions of the Project
Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 8.
Section 5.2  Project Labor Agfeement (Projeéts with construction costs exceeding $25
| | million)
The Entity shall execute a Project Labor Agreement as required by Section 304-33 of the

Jersey City Municipal Code as it exists or as it may be amended from time to time.
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Section 5.3  Living Wage Mandate (Projects with constructidn costs exceeding $25
“million) ‘

Since conséraction cOoSts are certified to exceed $25 million, the Entity shall comply with
the Living Wage mandate and the Entity shall immediately require compliance with Section 3-
76(c) in all its contracts and leases. This means that janitors and unarmed security_ guards
embloyed at the Projects, including by any and all tenants or subtenants of the developer, will not
be paid less than the standard hourly rate of pay and benefits for their respective classifications.
Tt also means that they will be provided with the paid leave in accordance with the provisions of
the Jersey City Municipal Code Section 3-51G(1).

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF .OCCUPANCY

Section 6.1  Certificate of Occupancy
It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all
Certificates of Occupancy in a timely manner so as to complete construction in accordance with
the proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5.
Section 6.2  Filing of Certificate of Occupancy —
| Tt shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax
Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.

Failure of the Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the

preceding paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non-action, taken by the City, .

“including, if approi)riate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be due, in
the absence of such filing by the Enﬁty.
- Section 6.3  Construction Permits

The estimated cost basis disclosed by &e Entity’s application and proposed Financial
Agreement may, at the option of the City, be used as the basis for the construction cost in the
issuance of any construction permit for the Project. |

" ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1  Accounting System _
The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established

and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
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Section 7.2  Periodic Reports ‘

A. Auditor’s Report: Within nincty (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar
year, depehding on the Entity’s accounting basis that the Agreement shall continue in effect, the
Entity shall submit to the Mayor and Mummpal Council and the NJ Division of Local ‘
Government Services in the Department of Commumty Affairs, its Auditor’s Report for the
precedmg fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor’s Report shall include, but not be limited to gross |
revenue, and the terms and interest rate on any mortgage(s) assoc:1ated with the purchase or
construction of the Project and such details as may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and
to its operation and performance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The
Report shall clearly identify and calculate the Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year,
the excess of which shall be paid to the City each year an excess profit is generated.

B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after Substantial Completion of the
Project, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor, Muﬁioipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City
Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, an audit of Total Project
Cost, including but not limited to an audit of actual construction costs as certified by the Project
architect.

C. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement, and
each and every year thereafter while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to the
Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal
officials required to be advised, a Disclﬁsm_e Statement listing the persons having an ownership
interest in the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional
information as the City may request from time fo time. All disclosures shall include ownership
interests of the individual persdns owning any corporate interest in the Entity.

Section 7.3 Inspection/Audit

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equlpment bulldmgs and other
facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by
representatives duly authorized by the City or the NJ Division of Local Government Services in
the Department of Community Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit

of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be made
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during the reasonable hours of the busine§$ day, in the presence of an ofﬁcer or agent designated
. by the Entity for any year during which the tax exemption financial agreement was in full forcg _
and effect. .
' All costs incurred by the City to conduct a review of the Entity’s audits, 'including
reasonable attorneys’ fees if appropriate, shall be billed to the Entity and paid to the City as part
| of the Enti’gy’s Annual Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same
rate as for a delinquent service charge.

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1  Limitation of Profits and Reserves
During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a

limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-15.

The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals,
and reasonable contingencies in an amount eciual to five (5%) percent of the Gross Revenue of
the Entity .fof the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may rétain such part of the Excess
Net Profits as is necessary 1o eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in N.I.S.A.
40A:20-15. The reserve is to be non-cumulative, it being intended that no further credits thereto
shall be permitted after the reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent of
the preceding year's Gross Revenue.

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net Profit

In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any year, exceeds the Allowable Net Profits
for such year, then the Entity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the end of the
year, shall pay Sl.lChl excess Net Profits to the City as an additional annual service charge;
provided, however, that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to
aforementioned paragraph 8.1. The calculation of the Entity’s Excess Net Profits shall not
include those project costs directly attributable to site remediation and cleanup expenses or any
other costs excluded in the definition of Total Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this Agreement.

Section 8.3  Payment of Reserve/ Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the fiscal
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- year of the Entity. Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the
g amoﬁnt of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursvant to this section and the balance of the
Excess Net Profit, if any. .

| A ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1 Ap?roval of Sale

Any sale or trarisfer of the Project without the prior consent approval by Ordinance of the
Municipal Council shall cause the tax exemption to automatically terminate without notice, by
operation of law. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written application by the Enﬁty,
will not unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale ‘of the Project and the transfer of this
. Agreement provided 1) the néw Entity does not own any other Project subject to long term tax
exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to operate under the .
Law; 3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the Entity's obligations
under this Agreement are fully assuméd by the new Entity; 5) the Entity pays in full the
maximum transfer fee, 2% of the Annual Service Charge, as permitied by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-
10(d); and 6) as to projects that are not Substantially Complete, the Entity is comprised of -
principals possessing substantially the same or better financial qualifications and credit
worthiness as the original Entity.

| Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the Entity itself

provided that the transfer, if greater than 10%, is disclosed to the City in the annual disclosure
statement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the filing of the annual disclosure
statement and does not violate the Law. |
Section 9.2  Transfer Application Fee

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of &4 change in
ownership or sale or transfer of the Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new
tax exemption application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to
the review, preparation and/or submission of documents to the Municipal Council for appropriate

action on the requested assignment. The fee shall be non-refundable.

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE
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Sectioﬁ 10.1 Operation -

During the" term- of this Agreerﬁent, the Project shall be maintained and‘ope;ated-in
accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this Agreement shall not
only be terminable as provided by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq., as amended and supplemented, but
also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with the Law shall
constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the
right to terminate the tax exemption. |
Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative

_ During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2015-

007, and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status.
The Entity’s failure 1o comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a
- Default under this Agreement and the City Shaﬂ,' among its .othf_:r remedies, have the right to
terminate the tax exemption.

ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT

Section 11.1  Default
- Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or
failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any appliéable
notice, cure or grace period. |
Section 11.2 Cuare Upon Default
| Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of the
- Default [Default Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis of the
alleged Default. The Entity shall have thirty (30} days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to
cure any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However,
if, in the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days using
reasonable diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.
Subsequent to such thirty (30) days, or ahy approved extension, the City shall have the
right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1., |
Should the FEntity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material

Conditions in Section 4.7, or a sale of the Project occurs without the prior consent of the City,
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the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided herein but shall

allow the City to 'proceéd immediately to terminate the Agreethent as provided in Article XII

herein.

Sectmn 11.3 Remedies Upen Defanlt

5

In order to secure the full and timely payment of the Annual Service Charge, the City
reserves the right to perfect and enforce a lien under the Leasehold Taxing Act or appoint a rent
_receiver or avail itself of any other remedy to protect the City’s interests.

In addition, the City may declare a Default and terminaté this Agﬁ:eement. Any default
arisihg out of the Entity's faiture to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge,
Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contribution, or the Annual Service Cha:rge-s shall not
be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided herein, but shall allow the City to
proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided herein. All of the remedies
provided in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and
equity shall be cumulative and concurrent. No termination of any provision of this Agreement
shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or actions against the Entity because of its failure to
pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, Affordable
Housing Contribution or Administrative Fees. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due
and owing at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if
there had been no teﬁnination. Fuﬁher, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum
Annual Service Charge, the Annual Service Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution,
Administrative Fees, or for breach of covenant or the resort to any other refnedy herein provided
for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights to terminate the
tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or any other specitfied remedy. '

In the event of a Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Article
IV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's property,
in the manner provided by the Leasehold Taxing Act, and any act supplenientary or amendatory
thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly or impliedly to mean taxes or
municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is pertinent to this

Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land.-
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ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION
Secﬁon 12.1 Termmatlon Upon Default of the Entity

In the event the Entlty fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period provided
n Se.ctlon 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to
the Entity [Notice of Terminatién]. _ |
Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity

The Entity may notify the City that it will relinquish its status as a tax exempt Project,
after the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of the Project , as of the January
1** of the year next ensuing. The Notice of Voluﬁtary Termination must be received by the City
no later than October 1% of the tax year preceding the calendar year in which the termination is to
occur. As of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service Charges and the profit and
dividend restrictions shall terminate. However, under no circumstances will the Entity be .
entitled to any refund, in whole or in part, of any funds paid to the City to obtain the tax
exemption, including but not limited to the Affordable Housing Coniribution. In addition, the
due date for all Affordable Housing Contribution and any other fees that the Entity agreed to pay
under this Agreement, shall be accelerated so that all fees to be paid shall be due on January 1%
as a condition ﬁrecedént of the voluntary termination.
Section 12.3 Final Accounting .

Within ninety (90) days after tﬁe date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the .
Entity or by virtue of the provisioﬂs of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the
Entity shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the
provisions of N.L.S.A, 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any remaining excess Net Profits. For
purposes of rendering a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be
the end of the ﬁsceﬂ yeéi‘ for the Entity. '
Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project
shall expire and the land and the Improvements thercon shall thereafter be assessed and
conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable

property in the City.
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_ ARTICLE XIITI - DISPUTE RESOLUTION
Section 13.1 Arbitration |

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of .the parties hereto or a .
dispute arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein,
gither party may apply to the Superiof Courtnof New Jersey by an appropriaté proceeding, to
settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the Law.
In the event the Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the parties shall submit the
dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance
with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose of the Long Term Tax
Exemption Law. The cost for the arbifration shall be borne by the Entity. The parties agree that
the Entity may not file an action in Sﬁperior Court or with the Arbitration Association unless the
Entity has first paid in full all charges defined in Section 4.7 as Material Conditions. ..

ARTICLE XIV - WATVER

Section 141 Waiver

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or
relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right to
terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided
herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the City’s right to audit or recover any amount
which the City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement. |

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

- It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party defendant in
any action by a third party alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of
this Agreement and/or the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A;20-1 et seq., the Entity shall indemnify
and hold the City harmless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs), arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives
all statutory or common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this -
indemnification. The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense. However, the CitSr

maintains the right to intervene as a party thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the
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exﬁense thereof to be borne by the City.
‘ ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE

Section 16.1 Certified Mail

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.
Section 16.2 Sent by City

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

HC West Campus Urban Renewal I, LLC
Hampshire Companies

22 Maple Avenue

Morristown, New Jersey 07960

And copy to:

Decotiis, Fitzpatrick & Cole LLP
Glenpointe Centre West
500 Frank W. Burr Boulevard.
Teaneck, New Jersey 07666
Attn: Matthew C. Karrenberg, Esq.
unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this
Agreement, of the name and address of Entity’s Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such
Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity
When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the Cify Clerk

City Hall

280 Grove Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,
with copies sent to.the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector
unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice
to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the

Property’s Block and Lot number).
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" ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY
Section 17.1 Severablhty

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agleement or the Apphcatmn excépt a
Material Condition, ‘shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of
this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or
circumstances cher than those as .to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be
affected thereby, and each term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be
enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and
provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each
other to-take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner contemplated
by the partics and the Law, This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re-
execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the
parties and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would
modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adJustments or any other term of this
Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City.

ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1 Consiruction

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State
of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid ofi any presumption or other nile requiring
construction against the party drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel for
" both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.

Section 18.2 Conflicts

The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the language
contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. Tn the event of conflict
between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail.

Section 18.3 Oral. Representations |
There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which are

not contained in this Agreement, This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement,
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and the Application' constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and there shall be no
modifications thereto other than by a written instrument approved and executed by both parties - |
and delivered to each party.
Section 18.4 Entire Document .

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Municipal Council approving
this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof.
Section 18.5 Good Faith |

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the
City. - | '

ARTICLE XX - EXHIBITS
Section 19 Exhibits '

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at
length herein: '
Metes and Bounds description of the Project;

Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;
The Application with Exhibits;

Certificate of the Entity;

Estimated Construction Schedule;

The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;

Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents Prices; '

Project Employment and Contracting Agreement;

Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs.

Entity’s Lease.

R A Aol b

._L
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the
day and year first above written.

WITNESS: , HC WEST CAMPUS URBAN
RENEWAL L, LLC

ATTEST: : CITY OF JERSEY CITY

ROBERT BYRNE , ROBERT KAKOLESKI

CITY CLERK BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
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City Clerk File No. Ord. 16.165
3.8

Agenda No. 1st Reading
Agenda No.. ' 2nd Reading & Final Eassage
ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.]J.
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE

offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE  16.105

TITLEORDINANCE APPROVING A 30 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR A MIXED USE
MARKET RATE RENTAL PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY HC WEST
CAMPUS URBAN RENEWAL II, LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT
TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW N.JLS.A. 40A:20-1 ET SEQ.

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, HC West Campus Urhan Renewal 1, LLC, is an urban renewal entity, formed and
qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as
amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. (Entity); and

WHEREAS, the Entity is the Lessee of certain property under a Ground Lease dated September
25, 2015, designated as Block 21902.02, Lot 4, located on NJCU West Campus, south of Carbon
Place between Route 440 and West Side Avenue, on the City’s Official Tax map, consisting of
approximately 1.36 acres which will be known by the street address of 26 University Place
Boulevard, and more specifically described by metes and bounds, in the application (Property});
and

WHEREAS, the Property is located within the NJCT West Campus Redevelopment Plan Area,
as required by N.I.S.A. 40A:20-4 and N.L.S.A. 40A:12A-5(g); and

WHEREAS, the Project received site plan approval from the Planning Board on October 20,
2015 to construct a mixed use market rate rental project o consist of a five (5) story building
with approximately one hundred and sixty-seven (167) units; 11,472 square feet of
commercial/retail space; and approximately one-hundred sixty-seven (167) parking spaces for
retail and residential tenants (Project); and

WHEREAS, by application dated March 23, 2016, as revised and finalized on June 1, 2016, the
Entity applied for a 30 year Long Term Tax Exemption; and

WHEREAS, HC West Campus Urban Renewal 11, LLC, has agreed to:
1. pay the greater of (i) the Minimum Anmual Service Charge or (if) 11% of the Annual
Gross Revenue, which sum is initially estimated to be $551,511; and which shall be

subject to statutory staged increases over the term of the tax exemption; and

2. pay an anmual sum equal to 2% of each prior year’s Amnual Service Charge as an
Administrative Fee initially estimated at $11,030; and

3. provide employment and other economic opportunities for City residents and businesses;
' and
4. pay to the City, for remittance to Hudson County, an additional amount equal to 5% of

the Annual Service Charge estimated to be $27,576; and

5. pay the sum of $342,858 to the City’s Affordable Housing Trust Fund;




Continuation of City Ordinance : , page

6. execute a Project Employment & Coniracting Agreement; executc a Project Labor
Agreement pursuant to Section 304-33 of the Jersey City Municipal Code, and comply
with the Living Wage Ordinance, Section 3-76 of the Jersey City Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the relative benefits of the project outweigh the
cost of the tax exemption, for the following reasons:

1. the City’s Tax Assessor estimates that the property will generate a land tax of only
$84,786, whereas, the Annual Service charge as estimated, will generate revenue to the
City of at least $551,511 upon Substantial Completion;

2. the Project will create approximately 125 jobs during construction and 30 new permanent
jobs;
3. the Project will stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of businesses in the

surrounding area;

4, the Project will further the overall redevelopment objectives of the NICU West Campus
Redevelopment Plan Area;

5. the City’s impact analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk, indicates that the
benefits of the Project will outweigh the costs to the City; and

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the tax exemption is important in obtaining
development of the project and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants for the
following reasons:

1. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charge will make the
Project more atiractive to investors needed to finance the Project; '

2. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charge will allow the owner
to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance to the building over
the life of the Project, which will aitract tenants to the Project and insure the likelibood of
the success of the Project; and

WHEREAS, HC West Campus Urban Renewal 11, LLC, has initially complied with Executive
Order 2002-005 concerning "Disclosuwre of Lobbyist Representative Status" by filing appropriate
letters of its lobbyists in the Office of the City Cletl; and

WHEREAS, HC West Campus Urban Renewal 11, LLC, has agreed to execute a Project
Employment & Contracting Agreement, and a Project Labor Agreement, and also to comply
with the requirements of Section 3-76 of the Jersey City Municipal Code concerning required
Wage, Benefit and Teave standards for building service workers.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey
City that:

A. The March 23, 2016, as revised and finalized on June 1, 2016, application of HC West
Campus Urban Renewal I, LLC, an urban renewal company, formed and qualified to do
business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and
supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 ef seq., a copy of which is on file in the office of the City
Clerk, property designated as Block 21902.02, Lot 4, located on NJCU West Campus, south of
Carbon Place between Route 440 and West Side Avenue, on the Cify’s Official Tax map,
consisting of approximately 1.36 acres, and which will be known by the street address of 26
University Place Boulevard, more specifically deseribed by metes and bounds in the application,
is hereby approved.

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a tax exemption
Financial Agreement. The Financial Agreement shall include at a minimum the following terms
and conditions:
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10.

11.

Term: the earlier of 35 years from the adoption of the within Ordinance or 30 years from
the date the project is Substantially Complete;

Annual Service Charge: each year the greater of:

(a)  the Minimum Annual Service Charge is $84,786, but will be $551,511 upon
Substantial Completion, whether or not the Project is occupied; or

(&) 11% of the Annual Gross Revenue, which initial sum is estimated to be $551,511,
and which shall be subject to statutory imereases during the term of the tax
exemption.

Administrative Fee: 2% of the prior year’s Annual Service Charge estimated to be
$11,030;

County Payment: 5% of the Annual Service Charge to the City for remittance by the City
to Hudson County estimated to be $27,576;

Project: A mixed use market rate rental project to consist of a five (5) story building with
approximately one hundred and sixty-seven (167) units; 11,472 square feet of
commercial/retail space; and approximately one-hundred sixty-seven (167) parking
spaces for retail and residential tenants;

Affordable Housing Trust Fund: $1,500 per unit or $250,500; and $1.50 per square foot X
61,572 square feet of comumercial/retail and parking space; for a total of $342,858. Such
finds will be accelerated and are non-refundable and may not be transferred in the event -
of a termination or expiration of the Financial Agreement,

Staged Adjustments:

(a) Stage One: years 1-9, Annual Service Charge shall be 11% of Annual Gross
Revenue;

) Stage Two: years 10-13, Annual Servu;e Charge or 20% of the amount of the
taxes otherwise due;

(c) Stage Three: years 14-17, Anmual Service Charge or 40% of the amount of the
taxes otherwise due;

(d) Stage Tour: years 18-21, Amual Service Charge or 60% of the amount of the
taxes otherwise due;

(e) Final Stage: Begmmng on the 1st day of the 22nd year through the date the tax
exemption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service Charge
or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due.

Project Employment & Contracling Agreement: an obligation to execute a Project
Employment and Contracting Agreement to insure employment and other economic
benefits to City residents and businesses;

Project Labor Agreement: an obligation to execufe a Project Labor Agreement pursuant
to Section 304-37(3) of the Municipal Code.

Compliance with the Living Wage Ordinance, Section 3-76 of the Jersey City Mumc1pal
Code for any building service workers serving the Project.

The Affordable Housing Trust Fund contribution: payments shall be due on execution of
the Financial Agreement, but in no event later than 30 days from the date of the adoption
of the within ordinance. If the Financial Agreement is not executed for any reason
whatsoever, interest shall accrue on such payments as of the 31% day at the highest rate
permitted for unpaid real estate taxes.
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12.  This Ordinance will sunset and the Tax Exemption will terminate unless construction of
the Project: 1) commences no later than two (2) years from the date the within ordinance
is adopted; and 2) is Substantially Complete no later than five (5) years from the date of
adoption of the within Ordinance.

C. The City Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of the Ordinance and Financial Agreement to
the Chief Financial Officer of the county and to the County Counsel, for information purposes,
within ten (10} calendar days following the later of the effective date of an ordinance following
its final adoption by the governing body approving the tax exemption or the execution of the
financial agreement by the urban renewal entity.

D. The application is on file with the office of the City Clerk. The Financial Agreement and
Project Employment and Contracting Agreement shall be in substantially the form on file in the
Office of the City Clerk, subject to such modification as the Business Administrator or
Corporation Counsel deems appropriate or necessary. '

E. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

F. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth
therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies
of the Jersey City Code.

G. This ordinance shall take effect at the fime and in the manner provided by law,

H The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed
to change any chapter numbers, ariicle numbers and section numbers in the event that the
codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the
existing code, in order to avoid comfusion and possible accidental repealers of existing

provisions.
NOTE: All material is pew; therefore underlining has been omitted.
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face
and repealed matter by iralic.
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:
APPROVED:
Corporation Counsel ‘ Business Administrator

Certification Required 11 '
Not Required (|




ORDINANCE FACT SHEERT — NON-CONTRACTUAL
This surmunary sheet is to be attached to the front of any Ordinance that {s submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the Ordinance.

Full Title of Ordinance

An Ordinance to Approve A Thirty Year Tax Exemption for a Market Rate Mixed-Use Rental Project
to be constructed by HC West Campus IT Urban Renewal, L1.C, An Urban Renewal Entity pursaant to
the Long term Tax Exemption Law N.J.8.A. 40A:20-1 et. seq. Designated as Block 21902.02 Lot 4 on
the City's Tax Map and known as 26 University Place Blvd.

Initiator
Department/Division | Office of the Mayor Office of the Deputy Mayor
Name/Title Marcos D. Vigil Deputy Mayor
Phone/email 201-547-6542 mvigil@jenj.org

Note! Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Ordinance Purpose

The applicant, HC West Campus Urban Renewal I, LLC, is applying for a thirty {30} year tax
abatement under N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. |t will be new construction of a five (5) story
mixed-use, market rate rental project within the NJCU West Campus Redevelopment Plan.

The application fee of $9,500 was pald. The Fiscal Impact Cost Projection shows positive
revenue to cost.

The proposed project will be a five (5) story mixed-use, market rate rental project. The
building will contain approximately one hundred and sixty-seven (167) dwelling units, 11,472
square feet of commercial/retail space. There will be one hundred and sixty-seven (167)
parking spaces. '

I certify that all the facts presented hercin are accurate.

Marcos D. Vigil Date
Deputy Mayor




DRAFT

' DATE: May 12, 2016 _
TO: John Hallanan (For distribution to City Council and City Clerk)

FROM: Al Cameron, Fiscal Officer - Tax Collector’s Office

SUBJECT: THIRTY YEAR TAX ABATEMENT: MIXED - USE, MARKET- RATE
RENTAL PROJECT — HC West Campus Urban Renewal 1l LL.C,
Block 21902.02 Lot 4

CC: M. Cosgrove, E. Borja, J. Monahan, E. Toloza, M. Vigil, R. Kakoleski, R. Lavarro, G. Corrado

INTRODUCTION:

'The applicant, HC West Campus Urban Renewal I, LLC, is applying for a thirty
(30) year tax abatement under N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. It will be new
construction of a five (5) story mixed-use, market rate rental project within the
NJCU West Campus Redevelopment Plan. The application fee of $9,500 was paid.

LOCATION OF THE PROPERTY:

The applicant entered into a ground lease with New Jersey City University for
property located on the West Campus south of Carbon Place between Route 440
,and West Side Avenue. The project is referred to as West Campus Block 2. 1t will
be known as 26 University Place Blvd. :

PROPERTY TO BE CONSTRUCTED:

The proposed project will be a five (5) story mixed-use, market rate rental project.
The building will contain approximately one hundred and sixty-seven (167)
dwelling units, 11,472 square feet of commercialiretail space. Individual parking
for retail and residential tenants total one hundred and sixty-seven (167) spaces.
The residential units are as follows:

Unit Type Number of units
* Studio 44

One Bedroom 86

Two Bedroom : 31

Three Bedroom _6

Total | 167

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST:

The cost of construction estimated at $42,71.3,5_36. is certified by Dean Marchetto,

H € West Campus UR Hl LLC Sum.docx
6/7/2016 12:18 PM
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thé applicant’s architect. Total Project Cost is projected at $50,233,787.

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE:

The applicant estlmates construction will begm in October 2016 with complet;on
within fourteen (14) months.

EST!MATED JOBS CREATED:

The applicant estimates creation of one hundred fifty (125) jobs during
Construction. Post-construction jobs will be approximately thirty (30} permanent
positions. The applicant will execute both a Project Employment and Contracting
Agreement and a Project Labor Agreement.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND CONTRIBUTIONS:

| HC WEST CAMPUS URBAN RENEWAL LL.C AHTF PAYMENT

Rate Amount
Residential Units 167  $1,500.00  $250,500.00
Square footage
Parking - 50,100  $1.50 $75,150.00
Commercial
space ‘ 11,472 $1.50 $17,208.00
“Total AMTF Payment $342,858.00

CURRENT REAL ESTATE TAX:

The property owned by New Jersey City University is currently tax exempt. The
new assessment for the land based upon the proposed project of Block 21902.02
Lot 4 is $1,133,200. The proposed Improvements are assessed at $9,380,800. At
the current tax rate of $74.82 the estimated annual land tax is $84,786.

PROPOSED ABATEMENT:

The applicant has requested a term of the lesser of thirty five (35) years from the
date of approval of an ordinance approving the abatement or thirty (30) years
from substantial completion of the project.

The Applicant p'roposes an Annual Service Charge of eleven percent (11%) of -
Annual gross revenue, a two percent (2%) City administrative fee and a five
percent (§%) service charge to Hudson County.

H C West Campus UR 11 LLC Sum.docx
6/7/2016 12:18 PM
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STAGED ADJUSTMENTS:,

Beginning the first day of year ten (10) through the end of year thirteen (13) it
would be the greater of the annual service charge or twenty percent (20%) of
conventional taxes otherwise due. - -

Beginning the first day of year fourteen (14) through the end of year seventeen
(17) it would be the greater of the annual service charge or forty percent (40%) of
conventional taxes otherwise due.

Beginning the first day of year eighteen (18) through the end of year twenty-one
(21) it would be the greater of the annual service charge or sixty percent (60%) of
conventional taxes otherwise due. -

Beginning in year twenty-two (22) through the end of year thirty (30) it would be
the greater of the annual service charge or eighty percent (80%) of conventional
taxes otherwise due.

‘Beginning in year thirty-one (31) the project would pay full conventional tax.

The Tax Assessor’s phase-in schedule assesses the Land at $1,133,200 and the
improvements at.$ 9,380,800 for the completed project. The PILOT would be the
greater of the Annual Service Charge (ASC) or the result of the staged
adjustments. ' :

. PROPOSED REVENUE TO THE CITY:

At full occupancy the Good Faith estimated annual revenue is $5,013,732. The
Annual Service charge at the rate of eleven percent (11%) is $5651,511. The City
Administrative fee at two percent (2%) would be $11,030 and the Hudson County
fee of five percent (5%) would be $27,576.

The Fiscal Impact Cost Projection included shows positive revenue to cost.

H ¢ West Campus UR Il LLC Sum.docx
6/7/2016 12:13 PM




FISCAL IIPACT COST PROJECTION (MARKET RATE RENTAL UNITS - 30 YEAR)

Block: 21902.02 Lot: 4 Loc: 26 UNIVERSITY PLACE BLVD. (BLOCK 2}
Markef Rate Rental Units . Demographic Multiplers Annual Total
(Transit Oriented Development)* Expendiures Annual Expenditures
. Number Total Per Capita Per Pupil
; Planned Bevelopment of Units Household Students Residents Students- Wunicipal Per Schaol District Municipal School District ) Total

Studio 44 1.000 0.000 44.00 0.00 $1,181.83 $3,673.00 $52,000.47 $0.00 $52,000.47

1 Bedroom 86 1.421 0.050 q122.21 430 $1,181.83 $3,573.00 $144,426.57 $15,793.90 $160,220.47

2 Bedroom 31 2.012 0.120 52.37 3.72 $1,181.83 $3,673.00 ) $73,713.03 $13,663.56 $87,376.59

3 Bedroom 6 2798 0.560 16.79 3.36 $1,181.83 $3,673.00 $19,540.54 $12,341.28 $32,181.82
| TOTAL 167 245.37 11.38 $289,980.51 $41,798.74 $331,779.35
1. Total Municipal Ratables $5,997,768,597 |4. CY 2015 Budget $535,307,187 (6. Population of Jersey City 9, [ncrease in Services
: Incurred Per Development $ 331,779.35
‘: {2010 Census) 247,597 .
i 10. Anticipated Gross PILOT (1st Year)
: 2. Residential Ratables $3,278,586,056 7. Per Capita Municipal Cost 11% 468 § 551,510.52
i Commercial Ratables $1,512,274,524 2% Admin  $ 11,030.21
i $1,181.83 Less Land Tax (74.62) {84,786.02)
: 3. Residential Ratables 8. Annual Expenditures Per Student* 11. tst Year Net PILOT $ 477.754.71
| as a Percentage of : . .
3 Total Ratables 54.66% 5. Residential Portion $292,617,271 $3,673.00{12. Implied Surplus {Cost} $ 146,975.36

Classic Average costing approach for projecting the impact of population change and local Municipal and Schoof District costs NEW ASSESSMENT AFTER IMPROVEMENTS

*Sourve: New Jersey Demographic Multiplers: Profie of the Qo sants of Residential and ! idential Devetopment; Listokin, November 2006 . LAND: 1,133,200

=~Source: 2015-2018 Jersey City Municips! Cost Per Pugil ' BLDG: 9,380,800




SERVICE CHARGE V5 CONVENTIONAL

NJCU WEST CAMPUS (BLOCK 2)

*ASSUMING 74.82 TAX RATE WITH 2% ANNUAL INCREASE BLOCK 21902.02
. LOT 4
NEW ASSESSMENTS BASED ON TAX ASSESSOR ANALYSIS
LAND 1,133,200 COUNTY 5% EXISTING ASSESSMENT 1,133,200
BLDG 9,380,800 ADMIN 2%
TOTAL 10,514,000 7 PROIJECTED SERVICE CHARGE (1ST YEAR) 551,511
Lurrent Taxes On
ASCw/ Phase-n less | ASCw/ 2% Annual | ASCw/ 2% Annual Estimated Conventional Taxes | Staged | ConventionalTaxes EXISTING s
YEAR Land Tax Credit Increase Incease & Phase-In County Admin On NEW Assessment Ad] Rate § at51% (Estimated) Assessment Land Tax
1 466,725 551,511 551,511 27,576 11,030 786,657 401,185 84,786 84,786
2 476,059 562,541 582,541 28,127 11,251 802,391 449,213 86,482 86,482
3 "485,581 573,792 573,792 28,690 11,476 818,438 © 417,404 88,211 88,211
4 495,292 585,268 585,268 29,263 11,705 834,807 425,752 89,976 89,976
5 505,198 596,975 596,873 29,845 11,939 851,503 434,267 91,775 81,775
B, 515,302 608,913 608,913 30,446 12,178 868,533 442,952 93,611 93,611
7 525,608 621,091 621,091 31,055 12,422 885,904 451,811 95,483 95,483
8 536,120 633,513 633,513 31,676 12,670 903,622 ) 460,847 97,392 97,392
9 546,843 645,183 646,183 32,309 12,924 921,695 470,064 99,340 99,340
10 557,780 . 659,107 658,107 32,955 13,182 940,129 20% 479,466 101,327 101,327
11 568,935 672,289 672,289 33,614 13,446 958,931 20%) 489,055 103,354 103,354
12 580,314 685,735 685,735 34,287 13,715 978,110 20% 498,836 105,421 105,421
13 591,920 659,449 689,449 34,972 13,989 G97,672 20% 508,813 107,529 107,529
14 603,759 713,438 713,438 35,672 14,269 1,017,625 40% 518,989 109,680 109,680
15 615,834 727,107 727,707 36,385 14,554 1,037,978 40% 529,369 111,873 111,873
16 628,150 742,261 742,261 37,113 14,845 1,058,737 40% 539,956 114,111 114,111
17 540,713 757,106 757,106 37,855 15,142 1,079,912 40% 550,755 116,393 116,393
18 653,528 772,249 772,249 38,612 15,445 1,101,510 60% 561,770 118,721 118,721
19 666,598 787,694 787,694 39,385 15,754 1,123,541 60% 573,006 121,095 121,085
20 679,930 803,447 803,447 40,172 16,069 1,145,011 50% 584,466 123,517 123,517
21 693,529 819,516 819,516 40,976 16,350 1,168,932 60% 596,155 125,988 125,988
22 825,341 835,907 953,848 47,692 19,077 1,192310 80% 608,078 128,507 128,507
23 841,848 852,625 972,925 43,646 19,459 1,216,156 80% 620,240 131,077 131,077
24 858,685 869,677 992,384 49,619 19,848 1,240,480 80% 632,645 133,699 133,699
25 875,858 887,071 1,022,231 50,612 20,245 1,265,289 80% | 645,297 136,373 136,373
26 $93,376 904,812 1,032,476 51,624 20,650 1,290,595 80% 658,203 139,100 139,100
27 911,243 922,908 1,053,126 52,656 21,063 1,316,407 80% 571,368 141,882 141,882
28 929,468 941,367 1,074,188 53,709 21,484 1,342,735 80% 684,795 144,720 144,720
29 948,057 960,194 1,095,672 54,784 21,913 1,369,580 80% 698,491 147,615 147,615
30 967,018 979,398 1,117,585 55,879 22,352 © 1,396,982 80% 712,461 150,567 150,567
TOTAL 20,084,612 22,373,742 23,524,218 1,176,211 470,484 . 31,915,183 © 16,275,723 3,439,606 3,439,606

ASC phase-in reflects annual 2% increase in conventionel taxes AND Gross Rents
Projected figures subject to rounding discrepancies :




TIER 3 - FINANCIAL AGREEMENT (30 YEAR)
Rev. 6/23/16

Long Term Tax Exemption

NJIS.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.

Residential Rental or Residential Condominium

Re: 26 University Boulevard (to be known as)
Approximately 1.36 Acres
Block 21902.02, Lot 4 _
NJCU West Campus Redevelopment Plan Area

PREAMBLE

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, [Agreement] is made the day of _, 2016,
by and between HC WEST CAMPUS URBAN RENEWAL II, LLC, an urban renewal entity
formed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law
of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., having its principal office at
22 Maple 'Avenue, Morristown, NJ 07960, and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal
Corporation of the State of New Jersey, having'its principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey
City, New Jersey 07302 [City].

RECITALS
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Entity is the Ground Lessee pursuant to Ground Lease dated Septeﬁlber
25, 2015, of certain property designated as Block 21902.02, Lot 4, located on NJCU West
" Campus, south of Carbon Place between Route 440 and West Side Avenue, on the City’s

Official Tax Map, consisting of approximately 1.36 acres, which will be known by the street
address of 26 Um'versity Place Blvd, J ersey City, and more particularly described by the metes
and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1 to this Agreement; and

WHERFEAS, this property is loeated within the boundaries of the NJCU West
~ Redevelopment Plan Arca; and '

WHEREAS, fhe Entity plans to construct a mixed-use, five (5) story mixed-use market
rate rental Project with approximately one hundred and sixty-seven (167) units; 11,472 square
feet of commereial/retaii spaee' and approximately one-hundred sixty-seven (167) parking

spaces for retall and remdentlal tenants; and

WHEREAS on October 20, 2015 the Project received site plan approval from the |




Planning Board; and _ .
WHEREAS, on March 23, 2016, as revised and finalized on June 1, 2016, the Entity
filed an Application with the City for a long term tax exemption for th¢ Project; and
WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance on , 2016, the Municipal

Council approved a long term tax exemption for the Project and authorized the execution of a

Financial Agreement; and
WHERFEAS, the City made the following ﬁndings:
A. Relative Benefits of the Proj ect when compared to the costs:

1. the current real estate tax should generate revenue of approximately
$84,786, whereas, the Annual Service charge as estlmated will generate
revenue to the City of at least $551,511;

2. as required by ordinance 13-088, the Entity shall pay the City the total
sum of $342,858 with $114,286 on or before the effective date of the
ordinance approving the Financial Agreement, and the balance of
$228,572 as an affordable housing contribution as required by the

ordinance;

3. it is expected that the Project will create approximately one hundred
twenty-five (125) new construction jobs and thirty (30) new permanent
full time jobs; '

4. the project should stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of

existing local business and to the creation of new busmesses which cater
to the new occupants;

5. the Project will further the objectives of the NJCU West Campus
Redevelopment Plan, and will include the development of vacant property;

6. the City’s Impact Analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk,
indicates that the benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City; and
B. . Assessment of the Importance of the Tax Exemption in obtaining development of
the proj ect and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants:

1. the relative stability and predictability of the annual service charges will
make the Project more attractive to investors and lenders needed to
- finance the Project; and -

2. the relative stability-and predictability of the service charges will allow the |
owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of
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maintenance to the building over the life of the Project, which will attract
occupants to the Project, insure the likelihood of stabilized rents to tenants
and the success of the Project; and

3. have a positive impact on the surrounding area.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and

 for other good and valuable cénsideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:

ARTICLE T - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.1.  .Governing Law ‘

This Agreement sha.ll be governed by the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption
Law, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., Executive Order of the Mayor
2015-007, Disclosure of Lobbyist Status, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinanceé 16~ , which
authorized the execution of this Agreement. It being expreslsly understood and agreed that the
City expressly relies upon the facts, data, and representations contained in the Application,
attaéhed hereto as Exhibit 3, in granting this tax‘exemption. |
Section 1.2  General Definitions

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used in
this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

L. Allowable Net Profit- The amount arrived at by applying on a non-accrual basis,

the Allowable Profit Rate to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.I.S.A. 40A:20-3(c) each year of the

tax exemption.

il Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived
at Ey adding 1.25% to the annual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity’s initial
peﬁnaﬂent mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a
governmental agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, if payable on a per.
annum basis, shéll be considered as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage
financing, -or if the financing is internal or undertaken by a related party, the Allowable Profit
Rate shall be the greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at by adding 1.25% per
annum to the interest rate per annuﬁ1 which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate
on mortgage financing on comparable iniprovements in Hudson County. The provisions of

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herein by reference.




<

fii. . Annual Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the -

Project. of whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees
from third parties, mcluding but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, or as
user fees or for any other services. No deductions will be allowed for operating or maintenance
costs, iﬁcluding, buf not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal
and insurance charges, whether paid for by the laﬁdlord, tenant or a third party.

1v. Annual Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City each

_year for municipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the
Improvements, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12. Tt shall include a payment for all annual exc.éss
- profit.

v.  Auditor's Report - A complete annual financial statement outlining the financial
status of the Project, which shall also include a certification of Total Project Cost and clear
computation of the annual not accrued, Net Profit and annual Excess Profit due to the City, if
any. The contents of the Auditor’s Report shall have been prepared in conformity with generally
acéepted accounting principles and shall contain at a minimum the following: a balance sheet, a
statement of income, a statement of retained earnings or changes in stockholders’- equity, a
statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies; notes to financial statements and
appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of operations, cash flows and any other
jtems required by Law. The Auditor’s Report shall be certified as to its conformance with such
principles by a certified public accountant who is Jicensed to practice that profession in the State
of New Jersey.

Vi. Certificate of Qccupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent; issued

by the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in part, pursuant to N.JS.A.
52:27D-133. '

vii.  Debt Service - The amount required to make annual payments of principal and
interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgége, permanent mortgage or other
financing including returns on institutional equity fmancing and market rate related party debt
for the Project for a period equal to the term of this Agreenient. -

viii.  Default - Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation
imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any
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applicable greee or cure periods.

ix.  Entity - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean HC West Campus
Urban Renewal, LLC., which Entity is formed and'qualiﬁed pursuant to NJ.S.A, 40A:20-5. [t
~ shall also include any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest of the Project, provided
they are formed and operate under the Law:.

X. Improvements or Project - Any building, structure or fixture permanenﬂy affixed

to the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement.

XI1. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which

the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A, 54:5-1 to 54:5-
139 et seq. '

xii.  Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on which the
project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land Taxes are not
exempt; however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge.

xiii. Land Tax Pavments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including

approved grace petiods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax
Collector. .

xiv. Law - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and
supplemented N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq.; Execuiive Order of the Mayor 15-007, relating to long
term tax exemphon, as it may be supplemented, Ordinance 02-075 requiring Disclosure of
Lobbyist Status and Ordinance , which authorized the execution of this Agreement and
all other relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances, resolutiens, rules and regulations,

xv.  Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall

be (a) until Substantial Completion the amount of the total taxes levied against all real property
in the area covered by the Project in the last full tax year in which the area was subject to
taxation, which amount the parties expect will be $84,786, initially; and (b) upon Substantial
Completion, the sum of $551,511 per year, which sum is eqtlal to the estimated Annual Service
Charge. , | ‘ |

Following Substantial Completion, the Minimum Annual Service Charge set forth in
subsection (b) shall be paid in .each year in which the Annual Service Charge, ealculated




pursuant io N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12 or this Agreement, would be less than the Minimum Annual -
Service Charge set forth in subsection (b).

XV1. Net Profit - The Annual Gross Revenues of the.Entity less all annual operating
and non-operating expenses of the Entity, all determined in accordance with generally accepteﬂ
accounting principles, but: - B

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Annual Setrvice charges paid pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12; (b) all annual payments to the City of annual excess profits pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-15 or N.I.S.A. 40A:20-16; (c) 'an annual amount sufficient to amortize
(utilizing the straight line method-equal annual amounts) the Total Project Cost and all capital
costs determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity
whose revenue is included in the computation of excess profits over the térrh of this agreement;
(d) all reasonable annual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is
inc.luded in the computation of excess profits including the cost of all management fees,
brokerage commissions, insurance premiums, all tages or service charges paid, legal, accounting,
or other professional service. fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office
supplies and payments into repair or maintenance reserve accounts; (e) all payments of rent
including but not limited to ground rent by the Entity; (f) all debt service; and

(2) there shall not be included in expenseé cither depreciation or obsolescence, interest on
debt, except interest ‘which is part of debt service, incomé taxes or salaries, bonuses or other
compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and étockholders of the entity, or
officers, partners or other persons hblding a proprietary 6wnership interest in the entity.

xvii. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the
singular, as well as the plural, as context requires.

xvifi. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the Project, in whole

or in part, is ready for the use intended, which 6rdiﬁariiy shall mean the first date on which the
Project receives, or is eligible to receive, any Certificate of Occupancy, whether temporary or
permanent, for any portion of the Project.

xix, Termination - Any act or omission which by operatiori of the terms of this

Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.

xx.  Total Project Cost - The total cost of constructing the Project through the date a
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Certiﬁcété(s) of Occupancy is iséued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set forth
in N.J.S.A. 40A:20-3(h). There shall be excluded from Total Project Cost the actual costs
incurred by the Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which
are associated with site remediation and cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials or
contaminants in accordance with State or Federal law and any other extraordinary costs incurred
including the cost of demolishing structures, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of
relocating displaced residents or buildings and the clearing of title.

ARTICLE U - APPROVAL

Section 2.1  Approval of Tax Exemption

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be
constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and
the 'prévisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain property known
on the Official Tax Assessor’s Map of the City as: Block 21902.02, Lot 4, located on NIJCU
West Campus, south of Carbon Place between Route 440 and West Side Avenue, which will Be
known by the street address of 26 University Place Blvd, Jersey City, and described by metes
and bounds in Exhibit 1 attached hereto.
Section 2.2 Approval of Entity

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as
- Exhibit 4. FEntity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of thé Law;
has been reviewed and approved by the Commissioner of the Department of Community Affairs;
and has been filed with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of tﬁe Hudson
County Clerk, all in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5.
Section 2.3  Improvements to be Constructed
7 Entity represents that it WillAconstruct a mixed-use, five (5) story mixed-use market rate
~ rental Project with approximately one hundred and sixty-seven (167) units; 11,472 square feet of
commetrcial/retail space; and approximately one-hundred sixty-seven (167) parking spaces for
retail and residential tenants; all of which is specifically described in the Application dated May
18, 2016, attached hereto as Exhibit 3. | ' |
Section 2.4  Construction Schedule

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the




Project in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5,
and in compliance with any Redevelopment Agreement.
Section 2.5  Ownership, Management and Control

The Entity represents that it is the ground lessee under a ground lease of the property

upon which the Project is to be constructed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the

Improvements will be used, managed and controlled for the purposes set forth in this Agreement
and any Redevelopment Agreement.
Section 2.6 Financial Plan

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance withi the

Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6 The Plan sets forth a good faith estimate of Total

Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of funds, the interest
rates to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid-in capital, and the
terms of any mortgage amortization.
Section 2.7 Good Faith Estiméte of Initial Rents
The Entity represents-that its good faith projections of the initial rents and other revenue
to the Project are set forth in Exhibit 7.
| ARTICLE I1II - DURATIQN OF AGREEMENT

Section 3.1 Term
So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and

agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of 35 years

from the date of the adoption of Ordinance on , 2016, which approved the fax -

exemption or 30 years from the date of Substantial Completion of the Project, but subject to the
commencement date and Substantial Completion mandate of Ordinance 16- . The tax

exemption shall only be effective during the period of usefulness of the Project and shall

continue in force. only while the Project is owned by a corporation or association formed and

operating under the Law.
ARTICLE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE

Section 4.1  Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following annual

payments to the City for services provided to the Project: .




1. City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Aunnual -
Service Charge or an.Annual Service Charge equal to 11% of the Annual Gross Revenue. The
Annual Service Charge shall be billed initially based upon the Entity’s estimates of Annual
Gross Revenue, attached hereto as Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Annual Service Charge shall be
adjusted in accordance with this Agreement,

ii. County Service Chargé: an amount equal to 5% of the Municipal Annual Service
Charge shall be paid to the City and remitted by the City to the County. |

1ii. | The Minimum Annual Service Charge pﬁrsuant to Section 1.2xv(a) shall be due
beginning on the effective date of this Agreement. Tﬁe Minimum Annual Service Charge
pursuant to Section 1.2xv(b) shall be due upon Substantial Completion of the Project. The City
Service Charge and the County Annual Service Charge shall be due on the first day of the month
following the Substantial Completion of the Project. In the event the Entity fails to timely pay
the Minimum Annual Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall
bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on land until
paid. ' '

Section 4.2  Staged Adjustments

The Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Sfages over the term of the téx
exemption in accordance with N.J.S.A, 40A':20—12(b) as follows:

i. Stage One: Fro.m‘ the 1st day of the month following Substantial Completion until
the last day of the 9th year, the Annual Service Charge shall be 11% of Annual Gross Revenue;

it. Stage Two: Beginning on the 1 day of the 10th year follbwing Substantial
Completion until the last day of the 13th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual
Service Charge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the
land and Improvements;

iii. Stage Three: Beginning on the 1st day of the 14th year following the Substantial
Completion until the last day of the 17th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual
Service Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the
land and Improvements; | '

| iv. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1st day of the 18th year following Substantial
Completion until the last day of the 21st year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual




Service Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of tile
land and Iroprovements; .

v.  Final Stage: Beginninig on the 1st day of the 22nd year following Substantial
Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the
Annuai Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of
the land and Improvements.

Section 4.3 Land Tax

The Bntity is required to pay both the Arinual Service Charge. If the Entity is obligated
by the ground lease to make Land Tax. Payments, including any tax on the pre-existing
improvements, payment must be timely made in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against
the Annual Service Charge for the suB_ssquent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the
amount, without interest, of the Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly
installments made by it against the Annual Service Charge. In any quarter that the Entity fails to
make any Land Tax Payments when due and owing, such delinquency shall render the Entity
ineligible for any Land Tax Payment credit against the Annual Service Charge for that quarter. '
No credit will be applied against the Annual Service Charge for a partial payment of Land Taxes.
In addition, the City shall have, among this temedy and any other remedies (including the
appointment of a rent receiver), the right to proceed against the urban renewal entity pursuant to
the Leasehold Taxing Act, N.J.S.A, 54:4-2.3, et seq. and/or declare a Default and terminate this
Agreement.

Section 4.4  Quarterly Installments / Interest

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly
installments on those dates when real estate tax payinents are due; subject, nevertheless, to
adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendrar year.
In the event that the Entity fails to psy the Annual Service Charge or any other charge due under
this agreement, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of
unpaid taxes or tax liens on the land until paid in full.

Section 4.5  Administrative Fee

The Entity shall also pay an annual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the
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‘Annual Service Charge and Tand Taft levy: The Administrative Fee shall be calcﬁlated as two
-(2%) percent of each priof year’s Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on
or before December 31st of each year, and collected in the same-manner as the Annﬁal Service
Charge. _ |
_Sr'ecti0n74.6 Affordable Housing Contribution and Remedies
| A.  Contribution. The Entity will pay the City the sum of $250,500 or $1,500 x 167
units; and $92,358 or $1.50 x 61,572 square feet of comm_ercial/retail and parking space, for a

“total of $342,858 as a confribution. The sum shall be due and payable as follows:

i. 1/3 on or before the effective adoption date of the Ordinance approving the tax
exemption;
il 1/3 on or before the issuance of the first of any construction permit or commencement of

construction, for the Project, but no later than six months after the date of the Financial
Agreement; and
iii. 1/3 on or before the date the first of any Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the
Project, but no later than twenty-four (24) months after the date of the Financial
Agtreement.
Section 4.7  Material Conditions
It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum
Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, including Annual Net Profits and any
adjustments thereto, Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions, and any interest

thereon, are Material Conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1 Project Employment and Contracting Agreement
In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other
economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project

Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 8.
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Section 5.2 Project Labor Agreement (Projects with construcﬁon‘ costs exceeding $25
-million)
The Entity shall execute a Project Labor Agreement as reqﬁired by Section 304-33 of the
Jersey City Municipal Code as it exists or as it may be amended from time to time.
Section 5.3 Living Wage Mandate (Projects with construction costs exceeding $25
miliion)
Since construction costs are certified to exceed $25 million, thé Entity shall comply with
the Living Wage mandate and the Entity shall immédiately require compliance with Section 3-
76(c) in all its contracts and leases. This means that janitors and unarmed secutity guards
employed at tﬁe Projects, including by any and all tenants or subtenants of the developer, will not

be paid less than the standard hourly rate of pay and benefits for their respective classifications.

It also means that they will be provided with the paid leave in accordance with the provisions of |

the Jersey City Municipal Code Section 3-51G(1). |
ARTICLE VI ~ CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Section 6.1  Certificate of Occupancy _
1t is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all
Certiﬁcates of Occupancy in a timely manner so as to complete construction in accordance with
the proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5.
Section 6.2 Filing of Certificate of Occupancy
It shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax
Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of éach Certificate of Occupancy.’
Failure of the Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the
" preceding paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non-action, faken by the City,
including, if appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be due, in
the absence of such filing by the Entity.
Section 6.3 Construction Permits
| .The estimated cost basis discl(;sed by the Entity’s application and proposed Financial
Agreement méy, at the option of the City, be used as the basis for the construction cost in the

issnance of any construction permit for the Project.
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ARTICLE VII - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1  Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls estabhshed |

and administered in accordance with generally accepted accountmg principles.
~ Section 7. 2 - Periodic Reports

A. Auditor’s Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each ﬂscal or calendar
year, depending on the Ent1ty s accounting basis that the Agreement shall continue in effect, the
Entity shall submit fo the Mayor and lMunicipal Council and the NJ Division of Local
Government Services in the Department of Community Affairs, its Auditor’s Report for the
preceding fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor’s Report shall include, but not be limited to gross
revenue, and the terms and interest rate on any mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or
construction of the Project and such details as may rélate to the financial éffairs of the Entity and
to its operation and performance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The
Report shall clearly identify and calculate the Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year,
the excess of which shall be paid to the City each year an excess profit is generated.

B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after Substantial Completion of the
Project, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor, Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City
Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, an audit of Total Project
Cost, including but not limited to an audit of actual construction costs as certified by the Project
architect.

C. Disclosure Statement:r On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement, and
each and every year thereafter while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to the
Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal
officials required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the persons having an ownership
interest in the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional
information as the City may request from time to time. All disclosures shall include ownership
interests of the individual persons owning any corporate interest in the Entity.

Section 7.3  Inspection/Audit
The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property equipment, bmldmgs and other
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facilities of the Project and, if deemed aﬁpropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by
representatives duly authoﬁzéd by the City or the NJ Division of Local Government Services in
the Department of Community Affairs. Tt shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit
of its books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be made
during the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an officer or agent designated
by the Eﬁtity for any year during which the tax exempﬁon financial agreement was in full force
and effect.

~ All costs incurred by the City to conduct a review of the Entity’s audits, iﬁcluding _
reasonable attorneys® fees if appropriate, shall be billed to the Entity and paid to the City as part
of the Entity’s Annual Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrﬁe interest at the same
rate as for a delinquent service charge.

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1  Limitation of Profits and Reserves

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a
limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-15. ‘

The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals,
and xeasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent of the Gross Revenue of
the Entity for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such part of the Excess
Net Profits as is necessary to climinate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in m
40A:20-15. The reserve is to be nbn—cumulative, it being intended that no further credits thereto
shall be permitted afier the reserve shali have attained the allowable level of five (5%) petcent of
. the preceding year's Gross Revenue.

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net Profit

' In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any year, exceeds the Allowable Net Profits
for such year, then the Entity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the end of the
year, shall pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional annual service charge;
provided, however, that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to
aforementioned paragraph 8.1. The calculation of the Entity’s Excess Net Profits shall not

include those project costs directly attributable to site remediation and cleanup expenses or any
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_ other-costs excluded in the definition of Total Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this Agreement.

Section 8.3 Payment of Reserve/ Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the fiscal
year of the Entity, Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the
amount of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the balance of the
Excess Net Profit, if any. _

 ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION

Section 9.1  Approval of Sale

Any sale or transfer of the Project, without the prior consent approval by Ordinance of
thé Municipal Council, shall cause the tax exemption to automatically terminate without notice,
by operation of law. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written application by the
Entity, will not unreasonably withhbld its consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer of this
Agreement provided 1) the new Entity does not own any other Project subject to long term tax
exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to operate under the
Law; 3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the Entity's obligations
under this Agreement are fully assumed by the new Entity; 5) the Entity pays in full the
maximum transfer fee, 2% of the Annual Service Charge, aé permitted by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-
10(d); and 6) as to projects that are not Substantially Complete, the Entity is comprised of
principals possessing substantially the same or better financial qualifications and credit
worthiness as the original Entity. | |

Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the Entity itself
provided that the transfer, if greater than 10%, is disclosed to the City in the annual disclosure
statement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the filing of the annual disclosure
statement and does not violate the Law. |
Section 9.2  Transfer Application Fee
_ Where the coﬁsent or approval of thé City is sought for approvai of a change in
ownership or sale or transfer of the Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new

tax exemption application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to
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the review, preparation and/or submission of documents to the Municipal Council for appropriate
action on the requested assignment. The fee shall be non-refundable.
| ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE

~ Section 10.1 Operation

During the term of this Agreement, the Prbject shall be maintained and operated in
accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this Agreement shall not
only be terminable as provided by N.J.S.A, 40A:20-1, et seq., as amended and Suﬁplemented, but
also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure fo comply with the Law shall
constitute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the
right to terminate the tax exemption.
Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representaﬁve

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2015-
007, and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status. -
The Entity’s failure to comply with the Executive Order or thé ‘Ordinance shall constitute a
Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the 1'ig1ﬁt to.

terminate the tax exemption.

ARTICLE XTI - DEFAULT

Section 11.1 Default | |

Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or
failure of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable
notice, cure or grace period.
Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to tﬁe Entity of the
Default [Default Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis of the
alleged Default. ' The Entity shall have thirty (30) days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to
cure any Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However,
if, in the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days using
reasonable diligence, the City will extend the time to cure. |

Subscqueht to such thirty (30) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the
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rig]nt to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.

Should the Entity be.in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material
Conditions in Section 4.7, or a sale of the Project occurs without the prior consent of the City,
- the Entity shall not be snbject to the default procedural remedies as provided herein but shall
allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agteement as provided in Article XII
herein. |
Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default

In order to secure the full and timely payment of the Annual Service Charge, the City
reserves the rlght to perfect and enforce a lien under the Leaschold Taxing Act or appoint a rent
receiver or avail itself of any other remedy to protect the City’s interests.

In addition, the City may declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default
arising out of the Entity's failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge,
| Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Cdntribution, or the Annual Service Charges shall not
be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided herein, but shall allow the City to
proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided herein. All of the remedies
provided in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and
equity shall be cumulative and concurrent. No termination of any provision of this Agreement 7
shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or actions against the Entity because of its failure to
pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, Affordable
Housing Confribution or Administrative Fees. This right shall apply to élrearages that are due
and owing at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if’
there had been no termination. Further, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum
Annual Service Charge, the Annual Service Cha:rge, Affordable Housing Contribution,
Administrative Fees, or for breach of covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein j;)rov_ided
for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights to terminate the
tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or any other specified remedy.

In the event of a Deféult on the part of the Entity to pay. any charges set forth in Article
IV, the City among its other remedles reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's property,

in the maunner prov1ded by the Leaschold Taxing Act, and any act supplementary or amendatory
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thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly or impliedly to mean taxes or
municipal liens on land, such statutofy provisions shall be read, as far as is pertinent to this
Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land.

ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION
Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity

In the e\}eﬁt the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period prox;ided
in Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to
the Entity [Notice of Termination]. '

Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity

The Entity may notify the City that it will relinquish its status as a tax exempt Project,
after the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of the Project , as of the January
1% of the year next ensuing. The Notice of Voluﬁtary Termination must be received by the City
no later than October 1% of the tax year preceding the calendarl year in which the termination is to
occur. As of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service Charges and the profit and
dividend restrictions shall terminate. However, under no circumstances will the Entity be
entitled to any' refund, in whole or in part, of any funds paid to the City to obtain the tax
exemption, including but not limited to the Affordable Housing Coniribution. In addition, the
- due date for all Affordable Housing Contribution and any other fees that the Entity agreed to pay
under this Agreement, shall be accelerated so that all fees to be paid shall be due on January 1
as a-condition precedent of the voluntary termination.

Section 12.3 Final Accounting

 Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the
Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the
Entity shall provide a final accounﬁng and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the
provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any remaining exéess Net Profits. For
purposes of rendering a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be
the end of the fiscal year for the Entity. |
Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project
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 shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and

conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable

property. in the City.

ARTICLE XIH - DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Section 13.1 - Arbitration

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a

" dispute arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein,

either party may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to
settle and resolve the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the Law.
In the event the Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the paﬁies shall submit the
dispute to the American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance
with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose of the Long Term Tax
Exemption Law. The cost for the arbitration shall be borne by the Entity. The parties agree that
the Entity may not file an action in Superior Court or with the Arbiiration Association unless the
Entity has first paid in full all charges defined in Section 4.7 as Material Conditions.
ARTICLE XIV - WAIVER

Section 14.1 Waiver _

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or
relinquishment by the City of any rights and reinedies, including, without limitation, the right to
terminate the Agreement and tax exemptioﬁ for violation of any of the conditions provided
herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the City’s right to audit or recover any amount
which the City has under law, m equity, or under any provision of this Agreement. '

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined

Tt is understood and ag'reed that in the event the City shall be named as party defendant in
any action by a third party alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of
this Agreement and/or the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., the_Entity shall indemnify
and hold the Cittharmless against any and all Iiabili;cy, loss, cost, expense (inclﬁding reasonable

attorneys’ fees and costs), arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives
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all statutory or common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this

indémniﬁcation. The Entity also égrees to defend the suit at its own expense. However, the City

maintains the right to intervene as a party thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the
“expense thereof to be borne by the City.

| ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE,

Section 16.1 Certified Mail
_ Any notice required hercunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by
certiﬁed or registered mail, return receipt requested.
Section 16.2 Sent by City
When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:-

HC West Campus Urban Renewal 11, LLC
Hampshire Companies

22 Maple Avenue _

Moftristown, New Jersey 07960

And copy to:

Decotiis, Fitzpatrick & Cole LLP
Glenpointe Centre West
500 Frank W. Burr Blvd.
Teaneck, New Jersey 07666
Attn: Matthew C. Karrenberg, Esq.
unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise.

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this
Agreement, of the name and address of Entity’s Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such
Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity
‘When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk
City Hall

' 280 Grove Street
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector
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.- unless prior to th.e giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice
*to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the
Property’s Block and Lot number). '
ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY

Section 17.1 Severability

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a
Material Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or uﬁenforceable, the remainder of
this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or
circumstances other than those as to which it 1s held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be
affected thereby, énd cach term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be
enforced to the fullest extent permltted by law.

If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be 111va11d or unenforceable and
provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each
other to take the actions reasonably requiréd to restore the Agreement in a manner contemplated
by the parties and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re-
execution of this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the
parties and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would
modify a Materjal Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of this
Agreement which would result in any economic reduction 0.1‘ loss to the City.

ARTICLE XVITI - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1 Construction

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State
of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring
constructlon against the party drawmg or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel for
both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.

Section 18.2 Conflicts

The parties agree that in the evenf of a conflict between the Application and the language

contained in the Agreement, the Agreémeﬁt shall govern and prevail. In the event of conflict

between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail.
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Section 18.3 Oral Representations
| There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which are
not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement,
and the Application constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and there shall be no
modifications thereto other than by a written instrument approved and executed by both parties
and delivered to each party. |
Section 18.4 Entire Document _

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinancé of the Municipal Council approving
this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof.
Section 18.5 Good Faith

In their dealings wifh cach other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the
City. '

ARTICLE XIX - EXHIBITS

~Section 19 Exhibits
The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at
length herein: :
Metes and Bounds description of the Project;
Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;
The Application with Exhibits;
Certificate of the Entity;
Estimated Construction Schedule;
The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;
Good Faith Estimate of Initial [Rents or Sales Prices];
Project Employment and Contracting Agreement;
Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs.
Entity’s Lease.

B0 NG R W N
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partles have caused these presents to be executed the
day and year first above ertten

WITNESS: : HC WEST CAMPUS URBAN
RENEWAL I, LLC

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY
ROBERT BYRNE ROBERT KAKOLESKI
CITY CLERK BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
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City Clerk File No. Ord. 16.106

. Agenda No. 3.C 1st Reading
Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage . “%%ﬁ} A
ORDINANCE y
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE

offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 16.106

TITLE:

BOND ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY, IN
THE COUNTY OF HUDSON, NEW JERSEY, PROVIDING AID
TO THE WEST CAMPUS REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT
LOCATED IN IN THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY AND
APPROPRIATING $16,000,000, THEREFOR, AND
PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF $16,000,000 IN BONDS
OR NOTES OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY TO FINANCE
PART OF THE COST THEREOF

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY
CITY, IN THE COUNTY OF HUDSON, NEW JERSEY (not less than two-thirds of all members
thereof affirmatively concurring) AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The improvement or purpose described in Section 3 of this bond ordinance is
hereby authorized to be undertaken by the City of Jersey City, in the County of Hudson, New Jersey
(the "City") as a general improvement. For improvement or purpose described in Section 3 hereof;
there is hereby appropriated the sum of $16,000,000. No down payment is required pursuant to
N.JS.A. 40A:12A-37(c) as this boud ordinance authorizes obligations for the purpose of aiding a
redevelopment entity with respect to a redevelopment project within the City.

Section 2. In order to finance the cost of the improvement or purpose, negofiable bonds
are hereby authorized to be issued in the principal amount of $16,000,000 pursuant to the Local
Redevelopment and Housing Law, N.J.S.A, 40A:12A-1 et seq. (the "Redevelopment Law").  In
~ anticipation of the issuance of the bonds, negotiable bond anticipation notes are hereby authorized to
be issued pursuant to and within the fimitations prescribed by the Redevelopment Law.

Section 3. (a) The. improvement hereby authorized and the purpose for which the

bonds are to be issued is to aid in the redevelopment of a redevelopment project consisting of (but

not limited to) road construction, storm sewer improvements, sanitary sewer improvements, water

line construction, various site lighting, improvements o sidewalks, benches and bins, landscaping,

electric line excavation, installation of traffic signals, various paving improvements, widening of
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Route 440; storm sewer, catch basin and manhole construction, sewer construction, water line
construction and construction of a pedestrian plaza and walkway, located within the West Campus
Redevelopment Area (the "Rédevelopment Area"), as more fully described in the Redevelopment
Plan dated February 9, 2003 (as amended and supplemented from iime to time, including on
February 13, 2008 and January 27, 2010) as enacted by City Ordinance 05-007 (the "Redevelopment
Plan"), including all work and materials necessary therefore and inciden‘tal thereto.

{b)  The estimated maximum amount of bonds or bond anticipation notes to be issued for
the improvement or purpose is as stated in Section 2 hereof,

(©) The estimated cost of the improvement or purpose is equal to the amount of the
appropriation herein made therefor. |

Section 4, All bond anticipation notes issued hereunder shall mature at such times as
may be determined by the chief financial officer; provided that no note shall mature later than one
year from its date. Tﬁe notes shall bear interest at such rate or rates and be in such form as may be
determined by the chief financial officer. The chief financial officer shall determine all matters in
connection with notes issued pursuant fo this bond ordinance, and the chief financial officer's
signature upon the notes shall be conclusive evidence as to ali such determinations. All notes issued
hereunder may be renewed from time to iime subject to the provisions of the Redevelopment Law. .
The chief financial officer is hereby_ authorized to sell part or all of the notes from time to time, at
not less than par and accrued interest, at public or private sale and to deliver them to the purchasers
thereof upon receipt of payment of the purchase price plus accrued interest from their dates to the
date of delivery thereof. The chief financial officer is dirested to report in writing to the governing
body at the meeting next succeeding the date when any sale or delivery of the notes pursuant to this
bond ordinance is made. Such report must include the amount, the description, the interest fate and:
the maturity schedule of the notes sold, the price obtained and the name of the purchaser,

Section 5. The capital budget or temporary capital budget (as applicable) of the City is
kereby amended to conform with the provisions of this bond ordinance to the extent of any
inconsistency hefewith. In the event of any such inconsistency and amendment, the resolution in the
form promulgated by the Local Finance Board showing fuﬂ detail of the amended capital budget or
amended temporary capital budget (as applicable) and capital program as approved by the Director
of the Division of Local Government Services is on file with the City Clerk and is available there for

public inspection.
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Section 6. The following additional matters are hereby detern_lined, declared, recited and
stated:

{a) The purpose described in Section 3 of thisl bond ordinance is not a current expense It
is an improvement the City may lawfully undertake as a general improvement within the
Redevelopment Area described in the Redevelopment Plan, and no part of the cost thereof has been
or shalt be specially assessed on property specially benefitted thereby,

(b) Pursuant to N.I.S.A. 40A:12A-37(c), the obligations authorized herein shall mature in
annual insta[hﬁents commeneing not more than two and ending not more than forty (40) years from
the date of issuance.

) The Supplemental Debt Statement required by the Local Bond Law bas been duly
prepared and filed in the office of the Clerk, and a complete executed duplicate thereof has been
filed in the office of the Director of the Division of Local Govermment Services in the Department of
Commnunity Affairs of the State of New Jersey. Such statement shows that the gross debt of the City
ag defined in the Locai Bond Law is increased by the authorization of the bonds and notes provided
in this bend ordinance by $16,000,000, and the obligations authorized herein will be within all debt
limitation prescribed by that Law.

{d) An aggregate amount not exceeding $4,000,000 for items of expense listed in and
permitted under N.J.S.A. 40A:2-20 is included in the estimated cost indicated hetein for the purpose
or improvement,

{g) The obligations of the City authorized by this bond ordinance shall bear inferest at a
maximum rate of not to exceed nine (9.00%) per centum per annum,

Section 7. Any grant moneys received for the purposes described in Section 3 hercof
shail be applied either to direct payment of the cost of the improvement or to payment of the
obligations issued pursuant to this bond ordinance. The amount of obligations authorized but not
fssued hereunder shall be reduced to the extent that such funds are so used.

Section 8. The City hereby declares the intent of the City to issue the bonds or notes ia
the amount authorized in Section 2 of this bond ordinance and to use proceeds to pay or reimburse
expenditures for the costs of the purposes described in Section 3 of this bond ordinance. This
Section § is a declaration of intent within the meaning and for the purpose of Treasury Regulations

Section 1.150-2 or any successor provisions of federal income tax [aw,
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Section 9. The chief financial officer of the City is hereby authorized to prepare and to
update from time to time as necessary a financial disclosure document to be distributed in
connection with the sale of obligations of the City and to execute such disclosure document on
behalf of the City. The chief financial officer is further autherized to enter into the appropriate
undertaking to provide secondary market disclosure on behalf of the City pursuant to Rule 15¢2-12
of the Securities and Exchange Commission {the "Rule") for the benefit of the holders and beneficial
owners of obligations of the City and to amend such undertaking from time to time in connection
with any change in law, or interpretation thereof, provided such undertaking is and continues to be,
in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, consistent with the requirements of the Rule.
In the event that the City fails fo comply with its undertaking, the City shall not be liable for any
monetary damages, and the remedy shall be limited to specific performance of the undertaking,

Section 10, The full faith and credit of the City is hereby pledged to the punctual payment
of the principal of and the inferest on the obligations authorized by this bond ordinance. 'the
cbligations shall be direct, unlimited obligations of the City, and the City shall be obligated to levy
ad valorem taxes upon all the taxable real property within the City for the payment of the obligations
and the interest thereon without limitation of rate or amount,

Section 11.  After passage upon first reading of this bond ordinance, the City Cleik is
hereby directed to publish the full text of the bond ordinance, together with the notice set forth below
entitled: "NOTICE OF PENDING BOND ORDINANCE" {with appropriate completions, insertions
and corrections), at least once in a newspaper qualified under N.J.8.A. 40A:2-19, at least seven days
pricr to the date set for public hearing and further consideration for final passage (which date shall
be at least ten days after introduction and first reading). The City Clerk is further directed to comply
with all provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:2-17(b) regarding postings, publications, and the provision of

copies of this bond ordinance.
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Section 12.  After final adloption of this bond ordinance by the Municipal Council, the City.
Clerk is hereby directed to publish the full text of this bond 0;'dinance, as finally adopted, together
with the nofice set forth below enti.ﬂed: "NOTICE OF ADOPTION OF BOND OI\I’D]NANCE"
(with appropriate completions, insertions and corrections), at least once in a newspaper quali-ﬁed
under N.J.S.A. 40A:2-19. a

Section 13.  To the extént that any previous ordinance or resolution is inconsistent
herewith-or contradictory hereto, said ordinance or resolu'tlton is hereby repealed or amendea to the
extent necessary to make it consistent herewith.

Section 14.  This bond ordinance shall take effect 20 days after the first publication thereof

after final adoption.

APPROVED A8 TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:

APPROVED:

Corporation Counsel Business Adminlstrator

Geriification Required U
Not Required il




ORDINANCE FACT SHEET — NON-CONTRACTUAL :
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance/Resolution

BOND ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY, IN THE
COUNTY OF HUDSON, NEW JERSEY, PROVIDING AID TO THE
WEST CAMPUS REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT LOCATED IN IN THE
CITY OF JERSEY CITY AND APPROPRIATING $16,000,000,
THEREFOR, AND PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF $16,000,000
IN BONDS OR NOTES OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY TO FINANCE
PART OF THE COST THEREOF

Initiator
Department/Division | Mayor's Office . .
Name/Title Marcos Vigil Deputy Mayor
Phone/email 201-547-6542 MVigil@]oen.org

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting {Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.}

Ordinance Purpose

To authorize the issuance of bonds or notes in an amount not to exceed $16,000,000.00 to aid in the
redevelopment of the West Campus Redevelopment Project.

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate,

Signature of Department Director Date
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ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCGIL AS A WHOLE )
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 16.107

TITLE: ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE JOURNAL SQUARE
LOFTS URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, FINANCIAL AGREEMENT DATED MAY 11,
2016, TO CORRECT THE UNIT NUMBER AND PROPERTY ADDRESS

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

WHEREAS, Journal Square Lofts Urban Renewal, LLC, is an urban renewal entity, formed and
qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as
amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq. (Entity); and

WHEREAS, the Entity is the lessee of certain property known as Block 10601, Lot 49,
Residential Condominium Number 3, Unit 03, Qualifier C.003, on the City’s Official Tax map,
and more commonly known by the street address of 2857 Kennedy Boulevard, (the “Property”);
and

WHEREAS, by an application dated July 2, 2015, as amended by a letter dated October 9, 2015,
and as amended by replacement application dated January 29, 2016, the Entity applied for a 25
year long term tax exemption to rehabilitate Residential Condominiwm Numiber 3, Unit 03,
which is a portion of a six (6) story building with a one-story extension to contain approximately
forty (40) market rate residential rental units (Project); and

WHEREAS, on May 11, 2016 the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City adopted
Ordinance #16-080 granting a 25 year Long Term Tax Exemption to the Project; and

WHEREAS, thereafter the City of Jersey City and the Entity entered into that certain financial
agreement dated as of May 11, 2016 (Financtal Agreement); and

WHEREAS, subsequent to entering into the Financial Agreement it was discovered by the
parties thereto that a subsequent application submitted on March 3, 2016 incorrectly stated the
unit number and strect address of the Property which was then recited in Ordinance #16-080
which identified the Property as “2853 Residential Condominium Unit, Unit 1, Qualifier C.0017;
and

WHEREAS, the parties agree that the correct unit number and street address of the Property is
“Residential Condominium Unif, Number 3, Unit 03, Qualifier C.003, 2857 Kennedy
Boulevard”; and

WHEREAS, by letter application dated June 15, 2016, the Entity applied to the City of Jersey
City to correct the error in the unit number and street address of the Property in the Financial
Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Jersey City Municipal Council that:

A. The application of Journal Square Lofts Urban Renewal, LLC, to correct the erroncous
unit number and street address recited in Ordinance #16-080 adopted on May 11, 2016, its prior
application and the Financial Agreement between the City of Jersey City and Journal Square
Lofis Urban Renewal, LLC dated as of May 11, 2016, is hereby granied.
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ORDINANCE, APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE JOURNAL SQUARE LOFTS URBAN RENEWAL,
LLC, FINANCIAL AGREEMENT DATED MAY 11, 2016, TO CORRECT THE UNIT NUMBER AND .l
PROPERTY ADDRESS

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a Replacement
(correctory) Financial Agreement; all references to 2853 Residential Condominium Unit, Unit 1,
Qualifier C.001 shall be deleted and replaced with “Resuient;al Condominium Number 3, Unit
03, Qualifier C.003, 2857 Kennedy Boulevard™.

C. Any and all references in Ordinance #16-080 to 2853 Residential Condominium Unit,
Unit 1, Qualifier C.001 are hereby deemed deleted and replaced with “Residential Condominium
Number 3, Unit 03, Qualifier C.003, 2857 Kennedy Boulevard’.

D. This Ordinance is adopted solely to correct the erroneous unit number and address of the
Property set forth in Ordinance #16-080 and in the application and Financial Agreement. All
other terms, obligations, and conditions of Ordinance #16-080 and the Financial Apreement
remain in full force and effect without change or amendment.

E. The City Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of the Ordinance and Replacement Financial
Agreement to 1) the City Tax Assessor; 2) the Director of the New Jersey Division of Local
Government Services; 3) the Hudson County Chief Financial Officer; and 4} the Hudson County
Counsel, within ten (10) calendar days of adoption or execution, whichever occurs later.

F. The City Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of the Ordinance and Financial Agreement to
the Tax Assessor and Director of the Division of Local Government Services.

G. The corrected application is on file with the office of the City Clerk. The Financial
Agreement and Project Employment and Contracting Agreement shall be in substantially the
form on file in the Office of the City Clerk, subject to such modification as the Business
Administrator or Corporation Counsel deems appropriate or necessary.

H. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

L This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth
therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official coples
of the Jersey City Code.

J. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner provided by law.

K. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and divected
to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the
codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the
existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing
provisions. ‘

NOTE: All material is new; therefore underlining has been omitted.
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by beld face
and repealed matter by italic. -
JM/he
6/21/16

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM : APPROVED:

APPROVED:

Corporation Counsel Business Administrator

Cartification Required O
Not Required O




ORDINANCE FACT SHEET — _
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution.

Full Title of Ordinance

ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE JOURNAL SQUARE LOFTS
URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, FINANCIAL AGREEMENT DATED MAY 11, 2016, TO
CORRECT THE UNIT NUMBER AND PROPERTY ADDRESS

Initiator
Department/Division | Mayor’s Office Mayor’s Office
Name/Title ‘ Marcos Vigil ‘ Deputy Mayor
Phone/email {201) 547-6542 vigihn@jenj.org

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Ordinance Purpose

The City of Jersey City and the Entity entered into a financial agreement dated as of May 11, 2016, pursuant
to the adoption of Ordinance #16-080 on May 11, 2016, granting the Entity a 25 year Long Term Tax
Exemption for the Project. ‘

Subsequent to entering into the Financial Agreement it was discovered by the parties the unit number and
street address of the Property were incorrectly recited in Ordinance #16-080, which identified the Property as
“2853 Restdential Condominium Unit, Unit 1, Qualifier C.001%.

Ordinance 16-080 need to be amended to reflect the correct unit number and street address of the Property as
“Residential Condominium Unit, Number 3, Unit 03, Qualifier C.003, 2857 Kennedy Boulevard™.

I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate,

Signature of Department Director Date




TIER 4 - FINANCIAL AGREEMENT (30 YEAR})
Rev. 6/20/16

Long Term Tax Exemption

N.IS.A. 40A:20-1, ¢t seq.

Re:  2851-2857 Kennedy Boulevard
Approximately .477 Acres
Block 10601, Lot 49, Residential Condominium Unit
Number 3, Unit 03, Qualifier C.003 '
Journal Square 2060 Redevelopment Plan

PREAMBLE

THIS REPLACEMENT FINANCIAL AGIEKEEMENT, [Agreement] is made as of the
11" day of May, 2016, by and between JOURNAL SQUARE LOFTS URBAN RENEWAL,
LLC, an urban rénewal entity formed and qualified to do business under the provisions of the
Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supﬁlemented, NJ.S.A. 40A:20-1 et
seq., having its principal office at ¢/o Hopkins Group, LLC, P.O. Box 18, Jersey City, NJ 07303
[Entity], and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation of the State of Néw
Jersey, having its principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 [City].

~ RECITALS |
WITNESSETH: _

WHEREAS, the Entity is the Lessee pursuant to Lease Agreement dated October 31,

2014, of certain property designated as Block 10601, Lot 49, Residential Coﬁdominium Unit

Number 3, Unit 03, Qualifier C.003, on property more commonly known by the street address of
2851-2857 Kennedy Boulevard, Jersey City, and more particularly described by the metes and
bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1 to this Agreement; and ) |

WHEREAS, this property is located within the boundaries of the Journal Square 2060
Redevelopment Plan Area; and

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to rehabilitate a porﬁ'o_h of a six (6) story building with a
'or.le-story extension to contain approximately forty (40) market rate residential rental units
[Project]; and |

WHEREAS, on April 7, 2015, the Project received site plan approval from the Planning .

Board; and




WHEREAS, on July 2, 2015, as amended by a letter dated October 9, 2015, and as

amended by rep’lacément application dated January 29, 2016, the Entity filed an Applicatioh with

the City for a long term tax exemption for the Project; and

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance 16-080, on May 11, 2016, the Municipal

Council approved a long term tax exemption for the Project and authorized the execution of a

Financial Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the City made the following ﬁndjngs:

A. Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs:

1.

the current real estate tax generates revenue of only $37,657, whereas, the
Annual Service charge as estimated, will initially generate revenue to the
City of af least $98,222;

as required by ordinance 13-088, the Entity shall pay the City the sum of
$20.000 on or before the effective date of the ordinance approving the
Financial Agreement, and will pay the balance of $40,000 as an affordable
housing contribution as required by the ordinance;

it is expected that the Project will create approximately 40 new
construction jobs and 1 new permanent full time jobs;

the project should stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of
existing local business and to the creation of new businesses, which cater
to the new occupants; E

the Project will further the objectives 6f the Journal Square 2060
Redevelopment Plan, and will include the [remediation or development of
vacant property;

the City’s Impact Analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk,
indicates that the benefits of the Project outweigh the costs to the City; and

-B. Assessment of the Importance of the Tax Exemption in obtaining development of

the project and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants:

1.

the relative stability and predictability of the annual service charges will
make the Project more attractive to investors and lenders nceded to
finance the Project; and

the relative stability and predictability of the service chargés will allow the
owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of -
maintenance to the building over the life of the Project, which will attract
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occupants to the Project, insure the likelihood of stabilized rents to ténants
and the success of the Project; and '

3. have a positive impact on the surrounding area.

NOW, TI—IEREF_ORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and
for other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows:
' ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1.1 Governing Law

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption
Law, as amended and sﬁpplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., Executive Order of the Mayor
15-007, Disclosure of Lobbyist Status, Ordinance 02-075, Ordinance 16-080, and Ordmance 16-
_, which authorized the execution of this Agreement. It being expressly understood and |
agreed that the City expressly relies upon the facts, data, and representations contained in the
Application, attached héreto as Exhibit 3, in granting this tax exemption.
Section 1.2 General Definitions '

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used in
this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings: -

L Allowable Net Profit- The amount arrived at by applying the Allowable. Profit
Rate to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.J S.A, 40A:20-3(c). The total expenditures for rent,

either base or additional, allowable in any year is $175,000, and any amount above that may not
be deducted in order to calculate the Allowable Net Profit.

1i. Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived

at by adding 1.25% to the annual interest. percentage rate payable on the Entity’s initial
permanent mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a
govemmehtal agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, if payable on a per
annum basis, shall be considered as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgége
financing, or if the financing is infernal or undertaken by a related party; the Allowable Profit
Rate shall be the greater of 12% or the percéntage per annum arrived at by adding 1.25% per
annum to the interest rate per annum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate
on mortgage financing on comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provisions of

N.I.S.A. 40A:20-3(b) are incorporated herein by reference.
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.iii. | Am;ual Gross Revenue - Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the
Project of whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees
from third parties, including but not limited to fees or-income paid or received for parking, or as
user fees or for any other services. No deductions will be allowed for operating or maintenance
costs, iﬁcluding, but not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal
and insurance charges, whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third party.

iv. Aunnual Service Cﬁa:r,ée - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City each

year for municipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the
Improvements, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12. It shall include a payment for all annual excess
profit. ‘

V. Auditor's Report - A complete annual financial statement outlining the financial

status of the Project, which shall also include a certification of Total Project Cost and clear
computation of the annual Net Profit. The contents of the Auditor’s Report shall have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and shall contain at a
minimum the following: a balance sheet, a statement of income, a statement of retained earnings
or changes in stockholders’ equity, a statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies,
notes to financial statements and appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of
operations, cash flows and any other items required by Law. The Auditor’s Report shall be
certified as to its conformance with such principles by a certified public accountant who is -

licensed to practice that profession in the State of New Jersey.

vi. Certificate of Qccupancy - A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued
by the City authorizing occupancy of e building, in whole or in part, pursuant to N.J.S.A.
52:27D-133. _

vii.  Debt Service - The amount required to make annual payments of principal and
interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other
financing including returns on institutional equity financing and market rate related party debt
for the project for a period equal to the term of this agreement

viii.  Default - Shall be a breach of or the faﬂure of the Entity to perform any obhgatlon
imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any

applicable grace or cure periods.




ix. Entity - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean Journal Square Lofis
Urban Renewal, LLC, which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5. It
shall also include any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest of the Project, provided

they are formed and operate under the Law.

X Improvements or Project - Any building, structure or fixture permanently affixed
to the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement. '

Xi. In Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which

the City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-
129 et seq. |

K. . Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on which the
project is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing ihlprovements. Land Taxes are not
exempt; however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge. |

xiii. Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including

approved grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax
Collector. '

XW | Law - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Léw, as amended and
supplemented, N.J.S. A, 40A:20-1, et seq.; Executive Order of the Mayor 15-007, relating to long
térm tax exemption, as it may be supplemented; Ordinance 02-075 requiring Disclosure of
Lobbyist Status, Ordinance 16-080, and Ordinance 16-  , which authorized the execution
of this Agreement and all other relevant Federal, State or City sté-tutes, ordinances, resolutions,
rules and regulations.

xvi.  Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall

be (a) until Substantial Completion the amount of the total taxes levied against all real property
in the area covered by the Project in the last full tax year in which the area was subject to
taxation, which amount the parties agree is $37,657; and (b) upon Substantial Completion, the
sum of $98,222 per year, which sum is equal to the init_ial estimated Annual Service Charge.
Following Substantial Completion, the Minimum Annuai Service Charge set forth in
Subsectioh (b) shall be paid in each year in which the Annual Service Charge, calculated
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12 or this Agreement, would be less than the Minimum Annual

Service Charge.




xvi. Net Profit - The Annual Gross Revenues of the Entity less all am'lual‘operating
and non—operating. expenses of the Entity, all determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principlés, but: |

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Annual Service charges paid pursuant to
N.J.S.A. 40A:20—12; (b) all annual payments to the City of excess pfoﬁts pufsuant to NLI.S.A,

_40A:20-15 or N.J.S.A. 40A:20-16; (c) an annual amount sufficient to amortize (utilizing the
straight line method-equal annual amounts) the Total Project Cost and all capital costs-
determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity
whose revenue is included in the computation of excess profits over the tef_m of tHis agreement;
(d) all reasonablé annual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is
included in the computatibﬁ of excess profits rincludjng the cost of all management fees,
brokerage commissions, insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting,
or other professional service fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office
supplies and payments into repair or maintenance reserve accounts; (e) all payments of rent
including but not limited to ground rent by the Entity; (f) all debt service; and '

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on
debt, except interést which is part of debt service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other
compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or
officers, partners or other persdns holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity.

xvii. Pronouns - He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the
singular, as'well as the plural, as context requires. '

xviii. Substantial Completlon The determination by the C1ty that the Project, in whole

or in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the first date on which the
Project receives, or is eligible to receive, any Certificate of Occupancy whether tempo:gary or
permanent for any portion of the Project. |

xix. Termination - Any act or omission which by operétion of the terms of this
Financial Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.

xx.  Total Project Cost - The total cost of constructing the Project through the date a

| Cértiﬁcate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set forth

in NJLS.A. 40A:20-3(h). There shall be included from Total Prbject Cost the actual costs




incurred by the Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which
are associated with site remediation and .cleanup of environmentally hazardous materials or
'contaminants in accordance with State or Federal law and any extraordinary costs incurred
including the cost of demolishing structures, relocation or removal of public ufilities; cost of
relocating displaced residents or buildings and the clearing of title. If the Service Charge is a
percentage of Total P;oject Cost, then the Entity agrees that final Total Projéct Cost shall not be
~ less than its estimated Total Project Cost.

ARTICLE 11 - APPROVAL

Section 2.1  Approval of Tax Exemption
The City hereby grarits its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be
constructed and maintained-in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and
the provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain property knolwyln'
on the Official Tax Assessor’s Map of the City as: Block 10601, Lot 49,‘ Residential Unit
Number 3, Um't 03, Qualifier C.003, on property more commonly known by the street address
2851-2857 Kennedy Boulevard, Jersey City, and described by metes and bounds in Exhibit 1
attached hereto. _ | '7
Section 2.2  Approval of Entity
Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as
Exhibit 4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law;
- has been reviewed and approved by the Commissioner of the Department of Community Affairs;
and has been filed with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson
County Clerk, all in accordance with N.J.S.A, 40A:20-5.
Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed
Entity represents that it will rehabilitate a portion of a six (6) story building with a one-
story extension to contain approximately forty (40) market rate residential rental units; all of
which is specifically described in the Application attached hereto as Exhibit 3.
Section 2.4  Construction Schedule
The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete .thAe

Project in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5.




Section 2.5 ‘Ownership, Management and Control
 The Entity represents that it is the owner of the property upon which the Project is to be

constructed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the ITmprovements will be used,
managed and controlled for the purposes sef forth in this Agreement.
Section 2.6 Financial Plan

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the
Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth a good faith estimate of Total
Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of funds, the interest
rates to be paid on construction financing, a lease capitalizaﬁon‘rate_ for the Entity’s lease-hold
interest, the source and amount of paid-in capité,l, and the terms of any mortgage amortization.-
Section 2.7  Good Faith Estimate of Initial Sale Prices or Rents

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial sale price or rents and
other revenue to the Project are set forth in Exhibit 7.

ARTICLE 1II - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 3.1 Term

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and
agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of 28 years
from the date of the adoption of Ordinance 16-080, which approved the tax exemption or 25
years from the original date of Substantial Completion of the Project, The tax exemption shall
only be effective during the period of usefulness of the Project and shall-continue in force only
while the Project is owned by a corporation or association formed and operating under the Law.

ARTICLE 1V - ANNUAL; SERVICE CHARGE

Section 4.1  Annual Service Charge

In consideration of the tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following annual
payments to the City for services provided to the Project:

i Annual Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the M1mmum Annual
Service Charge or an Annual Service Charge equal to:

(a) years 1-7: 12% of the Annual Gross Revenue;

(b) years 8-16: 14% of the Annual Gross Revenﬁe; and

(c) years 17-25: 16% of the Annual Gross Revenue.




" The Annual Service Charge shall be billed initially based upon the Entity’s estimates of Annual
Gross Revenue, attached hereto as Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Annual Service Charge shall be
adjusted in accordance with this Agreement.

i County Service Charge: an amount equal to 5% of the-Municipal Annual Service
Charge shall be paid to the City and remitted by the City to the County.

1ii. The Minimum Annual Service Charge pu:rsuant to Section 1.2xvi(a) shali be due
beginning on the effective date of this Agreement. The Minimum Annual Service Charge
pursuant to Section 1.2xvi(b) shall be due 12 months following Substantial Completion of the
‘Project. The Annual Service Charge and the County Service Charge shall be due on the first day
of the month following the Substantial Completion of the Proj ect. In the event the Entity fails to
timely pay the Minimum Annual Service Charge or any Annual Service Charges, the unpaid
amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on
land until paid.

Section 4.2  Statutory Staged Adjustments

The Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the téx
exemption inaccordance with N.LS.A. 40A:20-12(b) as follows:

i, Sfage One: From the 1st day of the month following Substantial Completion until
the last day of the 6th year, the Annual Sefvice Charge;

i, Stage Two: Beginning on the 1% day of the 7th year following Substantial
Compl.etion until the last 'day of the 9th year, an amount cqual to the greater of the Annual
Service Charge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the
land and Improvements;

iii. Stage Three: Beginning on the 1st day of the 10th year followmg the Substantial
Completion until the last day of the 12th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual
Service Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the
land and Tmprovements;

iv. Stage Four: Beginning on the 1st day of the 13th yeér following Substantial '
. Completion until the last day of the 16th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual
Service Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the

land and Improvements.




V. Final Stage: Beginning on the Ist day of the 17th year following Substantial

Completion through the date the tax exempﬁon expires, ‘an amount equal to the greater of the
Amnual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of
the land and Imprm)ements. B : '
Section 4.3 Land Tax

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge and the Land Tax
Payments. The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, iﬁcluding any tax on the
pre-existing -improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against tﬁe Annual
Service Charge for the subsequent year, The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount,
without interest, of the Land Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly insté,llments
against the Annual Service Charge. In any quarter that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax
Payments when due and owing, such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land
Tax Payment credit against the Annual Service Charge. No credit will be applied against the
Annua)l Service Charge for a partial payment of Land Taxes. In addition, the City shall have,
among this remedy and other remedies, the right to proceéd against the property puréuant to the
In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. and/or declare a Default and terminate this
‘ Agreement. |
Section 4.4 = Quarterly Installments / Interest

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Ser_vice Charge shall be made in quarterly
installments on those dates when real estate fax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to

adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar year.

In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge or any other charge due under

this agreement, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of
unpeﬁd taxes or tax liens on the land until paid in full.
Section 4.5  Administrative Fee _

The Entity shall also pay‘ an annual Administrative Fee to the City ‘in addition to the
Anmual Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Adniinistrative Fee shall be calcul:ated as two
(2%) percent of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on

_or before December 31st of each-year, and collected in the same manner as the Annual Service
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Charge.
Section 4.6  Affordable Housing Contribution and Remedies
A Contribution. The Entity will pay the City the sum of $60,000 or $1,500 per unit
as a contribuﬁon. The sum shall be due and payable as follows:
i 1/3 on or before the effective date of the Fmanczal Agreement;
il. - 1/3 on or before the issuance of the first of any construction permit for the Project, but no
later than six months after the date of the Financial Agréement; and
iii. 1/3 on ot before the date the first of any Certificate of Occupancy is issued for the
Project, but no later than twenty-four (24) months after the date of the Financial
Agreement.
Section 4,7 Material Conditions
It is expressly agreed and pnderstood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum
Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Cha:rges, including Annual Net Profits and any
adjustments théreto, Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions, and any interest
thereon, are Material Conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT

Section 5.1  Project Employment and Contracting Agreement
In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other
economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project
Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as'Exhibit 8.
ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY |

Section 6.1  Certificate of Occupancy

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all
Certificates of O(_:cupandy in a timely manner so as to complete construction in accordance with
the proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5. The failure to secure the
Certificates of Occupancy shall subject the Property to full taxation for the period between the
date of Substantial Completion and the date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained.

Section 6.2 Filing of Certificate of Occupancy
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It shall be the primary responsibility of the Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax
‘Assessor and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy.

Failure of the Entity to file such issued Certificate of Oc'cup'ancy‘as required by the
preceding paragraph, shall not mjlitate-lagainé.t any action .or non-action, taken by the City,
including, if appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be due, in
the absence of such filing by the Entity. '

Section 6.3  Construction Permits _

The estimated construction cost basis disclosed by the Entity’s application and proposed
Financial Agreement may, at the option of the City, be used as the basis for the constrﬁction_ cost
in the issuance of any construction permit for the Project. -

ARTICLE VH - ANNUAL REPORTS

Section 7.1  Accounting System

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and intémal controls established
and administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
Section 7.2 Periodic Reports

A. Auditor’s Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar
year, depending on the Entity’s accounting basis that the Agreement shall contiﬁue in effect, the
Entity shall submitl to the Mayor and Municipal Council and the NJ Division of Local
Government Services in the Départment of Comminity Affairs, its Auditor’s Report for the
preceding fiscal or calendar year. The Auditor’s Report shall include, but not be limited to gross
revenue, and the terms and interest rate on any mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or
construction of the Project and such details as may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and
to its operation and petformance hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this. Agreement. The
" Report shall cleaﬂy identify and calculate the Net Profit for the Entity during the previmis year,
the excess of which shall be paid to the City each year an excess profit is generated.

B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after Substantial Completion of the
Project, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor, Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City
Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, an audit of Total Project

Cost, including but not limited to an audit of actual construction costs as certified by the Project
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architect. ‘

C. Disclosure Statement: On the anniveréary date of the execution of this Agreement, and
each and évery year thereafter while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to the
Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal
officials required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the persons having an ownership
interest in the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional
ihfonnation as the City may request from time to time. All disclosures shall include ownership
interests of the individual persons owning any corporate interest in the Entity.

Section 7.3  Inspection/Audit ‘ '

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and other
facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related E\ntity By
representatives duly authorized by the City or the NJ Division of Local Govemmént Services in
the Department of Community Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit
of its books, contracts, records, documents and papei*s. Such examination or audit shall be made
during the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an ofﬁ_éer or agent designated
by fhe Entity for any year during which the tax exemption financial agreement was in full force
and effect.
| All costs incurred by the City to conduct a review of the Entity’s audits, including
reasonable aﬁomeys’ fees if appropriate, shall be billed to the Entity and paid to the City as part
of the Entity’s Annual Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same
rate as for a delinquent service charge. |

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES

Section 8.1  Limitation of Profits and Resexves

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a
limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-15. 7 |

The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals,
and reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent of the Gross Revenue of
the Entity for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such part of the Excess

Net Profits as is necessary to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in N.LS.A.
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40A:20-15. The reserve is‘ to be non-cumulative, it being intended that no further credits thereto
shall be permitted after the reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent of
the preceding year's Gross Revenue. A
Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net Profit

In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any year, exceeds the Allowable Net Profits
for such year, then the Entity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the end of the
vear, shall pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional anmual service charge,
provided, however, that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to
aforementioned i)aragraph 8.1. The calculation of the Entity’s Excess Net Profits shall include
those project costs direcﬂy attributable to site remediation and cleanup exi)enses and any other
costs excluded in the definition of Total Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this Agreement even
though those cosfs may have been deducted from the project costs for purposes of calculating the
annual service charge.

Section 8.3  Payment of Reserve/ Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the fiscal
year of the Entity. Within ninety (90) days after, such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the
amount of thé reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the balance of the
Excess Net Profit, if any.

ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION
Section 9.1 ~ Approval of Sale

Any sale or transfer of the Project shall be void unless approved in advance by Ordinance
of the Municipal Council. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written application by the
Entity, V\;fill not unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer of this
Agreement provided 1) the new Entity does not own any other Proj éct subject to long term tax
exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to operate under the |
Law; 3)"the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the Entity's obligations
under this Agreement are fully assumed by the new Entity; 5) the Entity pays in full the
maxiJ:m_lm transfer fee, 2% of the Annual Service Charge, as permitted by N.J.S.A. 40A:20-
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10(d); and 6) as to projects that are not’ Substantially Complete, the Entity is comprised of
principals possessing substantially the same or better ﬁnancial‘ qualiﬁcatibns and credit
worthiness as the Entity.

Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the Entity itself
provided that the transfer, if greater than 10%, is disclosed to the City in the annual disclosure
statement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the filing of the annual disclosure
statement. -

Section 9.2 Transfer App]icatibn Fee

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a change in
ownership or sale or transfer of the Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new
tax exemption application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to
the review, preparation and/or submission of documents to the Municipal Council for approprizﬁe
action on the requésted assignment. The fee shall be non-refundable. )

- ARTICLE X - COMPYLIANCE

Section 10.1  Operation

During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in
accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this Agreement shall not
bnly be terminable as provided_by N.J:S.A. 40A:20-1, et seq., as amended and supplemented, but
also by a Default under this.Agreemént. The Entity's failure to comply with the Law shall
constifute a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, _amdng its other remedies, have the
right to terminate the tax exemption.
Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must coﬁiply with Executive Order 2002-
005, and Ordinance 02-075, requizing Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status.
The Entity’s failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a |
Dcfault under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to |

terminate the tax exemption.

ARTICLE X1 - DEFAULT
Section 11.1 Default '
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Default shall be failure of the Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreemeﬁt or
failure of the Entity to perform any 6bligatioﬁ imposed by the Law, beyond- any applicéble
notice, cure or grace period. ' '

Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity of the
Default [Default Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis of the
alleged Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to cure
any Default which shall be the sole aind exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However, if, in
the reasonable opinion of the City, the Default cannot be cured within sixty (60) vdays using
reasonable diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the
right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.

Should the Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material
Conditions in Section 4.7, or a sale of the Project occurs without the consent of the Clty, the
Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as provided herein but shall_allow
" the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided in Article XII herein.
Section 11.3 Remédies Upon Default

~ The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property
pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, N.J.S.A. 54:5-1, et seq. - In order to secure the full
and timely payment of the Anhual Service Charge, the City on its own behalf, or on behalf of the
Trustee, reserves the right to prosecute an In Rem Tax Foreclosure action against the Project
Area in accordance with Applicable Law, as more fulb.r set forth in this Financial Agreement.

In addition, the City may declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default
arising out of the Entity's failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge,
Administrative Fees, Affordable Housing Contribution, or the Annnal Service Charges shall not
be sﬁbject to the default procedural remedies as proﬁded herein, but shall allow the City to
proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided berein. All of the remedies
brovided in this Agreement to the City,-and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and

" equity shall be cumulative and concurrent. No termination of any provision of this Agreement
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shall deprive the City of any of its remedies or actions agairist the Entity because éf its failure to
pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, Affordable ‘
Housing Confribution or Administrative Fees. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due
and owing at the time or which, under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if
there had been no termination. Further, the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum
Annual Service Charge, the Annual Service Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution,

Adminisirative Fees, or for breach of covenant or the resort to any other remedy herein provided
| for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as a waiver of the rights to terminate the
tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure action or any other specified
remedy. |

In the event of a Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Article
IV, the City among its other remedies, reserves the right fo prdceed against the Entity's land and
property, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any-act supplementary or
amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly or impliedly to
mean taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is
pertinent to this Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land.
ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION

Section 12.1 Termmatmn Upon Default of the Entity

In the event the Entity fails to curé or remedy the Default within the time period pr0v1ded
in Section. 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon tthty (30) days written notice to
the Entity [Notice of Termination].

Sectiom 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity

The Entity may notify the City that it will relinquish its status as a tax exempt Project,
after the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of the Project , as of the January
1% of the year next ensuing. The Notice of Voluntary Termination must be received by the City
no later than October 1% of the tax year preceding the calendar year in which the termination is to
occur. As of the date so set, the tax exempﬁon the Annual Service Charges and the profit and
dividend restrictions shall terminate. However, under no circumstances will the Entity be

entitled to any refund, in whole or in patt, of any funds paid to the City to obtain the tax
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exemption, including but not limited to the Aff(grdable Housing Contribution. In addition, the
due date for all Affordable Housing Contribution and any other fees that the Entity agré_ed to pay
under this Agreement, shall be accelerated so that all fees to be paid shall be due on Ja:nuarj P |
as a condition precedent of the voluntary termination. | |

Section 12.3 Final Acc.ou‘nting

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the
Entity or by virtue of the provisions of the Law or pursuant fo the terms of this Agreement, the
Entity shall provide a final accounting and pay to thé City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the
provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any remaining excess Net Profits. For
purposes of rendering a final accounting the termination of the Agreément shall be deemed to be
the end of the fiscal year for the Entity.

Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes _

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project
shall expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and
conventionally taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable
propért_y in the City.

| ARTICLE XIII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION
Section 13.1 Arbitration

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a
dispute arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein,
either party may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to
seitle and resokve the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the Law.
In the event the Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the parties shall submit the
dispute to the American Arbifration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance
with its rules and regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose of the Long Term Tax
Exemption Law. The cost for the arbitration shall be borne by the Entity. The paftiés agree that
the Entity may not file an action in Superior Court or with the Arbitration Association unless the
Entity has first paid in full all charges defined in Section 4.7 as Material Conditions.

Section 13.2 ' Ap’peal'of Assessment '
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In calculating the amount of the Staged Adjustments that is, taxes otherwise due,

pursuant to Section 4.2 and N.J.S.A. 40A:20-12, either party may file an appeal of the
+ conventional assessment to determine the value of land and improvementé.

ARTICLE XIV - WAIVER

Section 14.1 Waiver

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or.

relinquishment by the City of aﬁy rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right to
terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided
herein. Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the City’s right to audit or recover any amount
which the City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XV ~ INDEMNIFICATION

Section 15.1 Defined
1t is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party defendant in

any action by a third ﬁarty alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of

this Agreement and/or the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et seq., the Entity shall indemmify .

and hold the ‘City harmless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs), arising out of this Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives
all statutory or common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this
indemnification. The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense. However, the City
maintains the right to intervene as a party thereto, to which intervention. the Entity consents; the
expense thereof to be borne by the City. A

| ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE

Section 16.1 Certified Mail _
Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by
certified or registeredlmaﬂ, return receipt requested. |
Section 16.2 Sent by City
When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to:

Journal Square Lofts Urban Renewal, LLC
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c/o Hopkins Group, LL.C
. P.O.Box 18
Jersey City, NJ 07303
Attn: Matthew Weinreich
- And
Connell Foley, LLP
Harborside Financial Center
2510 Plaza Five
Jersey City, NJ 07311
Attn: James C. McCann, Esq.

unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have._notiﬁed the City in writing otherwise.

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this
Agreement, of the name and address of Entity’s Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such
Mortgagee. with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity.

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity
When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to:

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk

City Hall

280 Grove Street

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,
with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector
unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice
to the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the
Property’s Block and Lot number).

ARTICLE XVH-SEVERABILITY

Section 17.1 Severability

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, | except a
Material Condition, shall be jﬁdicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of
this Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or
circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be
affected thereby, and each term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be

enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.
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If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and
provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each
-other to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner contemplated
by the parties and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re-
execution of this Agreement in a‘ form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the
parties and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if 1t would
modify a Material Condition, the amount of the periodic adjustments or any other term of this

| Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City.
'ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS

Section 18.1 Construoction

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State
of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring
construction against the party drawing or caﬁsing this Agreement .to be drawn since counsel for
both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same.

Section 18.2 Conflicts

| The parties agree that in .the event of a conflict between the Application and the language
contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. In the event of conflict
between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail.
Section 18.3 Oral Representations | _

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which are
not contained in this Agreement, This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement,
and the Application constitute the entire Agreement between the | parties and there shall be no
modifications thereto other than by a written instrument approved and executed by both parties |
anci delivered to each party.

Section 18.4 Entire Document .

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance of the Municipal Council approving

this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof. This Financial

Agreement replaces a Financial Aercement dated May 11, 2016, which incorrectly recited the

Unit number of the Property as 2853 Residential Unit — Unit 01, Qualifier C.001. Such Fins_mcial
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Agpreement is null and void, no longer effectiye and is replaced with this Replacement Financial
Ascreement containing the correct unit number and address.

Section 18.5 Gobd Faith

In their dealings with each othér, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the
City.
ARTICLE XIX - EXHIBITS

Section 19 Exhibits.
The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at
length herein: ,
Metes and Bounds description of the Project; A
Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement;
The Application with Exhibits;
Certificate of the Entity;
Estimated Construction Schedule;
The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Project;
Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents;
Project Employment and Contracting Agreement;
Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs;
0.  Entity’s Lease.

el N A e o e

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the
day and year first above written.

WITNESS: JOURNAL SQUARE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC
ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY

ROBERT BYRNE ROBERT KAKOLESKI

CITY CLERK . BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
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A TRADITION OF LEGAL EXCELLENCE SIMCE 1938

Connelt Foley LLP . : James C. McCann
Harborside Financial Center -

_ . ’ Partner’
2510 Plaza Five . . : : JMccann@gcennelifoley.com
Jarsey City, NJ 07311 : : ’ .

P 201,521,000 F 201,621.0100

June 15, 2016 I

Via Hand Delivery and E-mail: joanne@icnj.org

Joanne Monahan, Esq. : ' LT
Jersey City Law Department - . )
City Hall LR T

- 280 Grove Street, 3 Floor, Room 304
Jersey City, New Jersey 07302,

Re: Application for Ordinance Approving Unit number and Address Correction

for Financial Agreement between Journal Square Lofts Urban Renewal LLC
and City of Jersey City, dated May 11, 2016

Dear Ms. Monahan:

As you know this firm represents Journal Square Lofts Urban Renewal LEC in
connection with its tax exemption and Financial Agreement for the Journal Square Lofts Project.

On May 11, 2016, the Muricipal Council adopted Ordinance #16-080 granting the
Project a Long Term Tax Exemption.

On or about June 8, 2016 Journal Square Lofts Urban Renewal and the City of Jersey
City entered into a Financial Agreement for the Project dated as of May 11, 2016,

Also, Journa! Square Lofts Urban Renewal, LLC paid the first two installments of its
Affordable Housing Contribution in the amount of $4O OOO 00.

Unfortunately, the unit number and address for the Project recited in Ordinance #16-080
and the Financial Agreement are incorrect. Both docuniénts recite that the Unit is 2853
Residential Condominium Unit, Unit 1, Qualifier C.001, while the correct unit number and

. address is Residential Condominium Unlt Number 3, Umt 03, Qualifier C 003, 2857 Kennedy
Boulevard.

This is 'simply a case the wrong unit number and address bemg inserted into the
Qrdinance and the Financial Agreement. The Tax Exemption Application, which is Exhibit 3 of
the Financial Agreement and all of the other supportlng tax abatement documents reference
Unit 3 which is the correct unit number and 2857 which is the correct address Also, the flnanmal

Roseland . Jersey City Newark New York - Cherry Hil ' Philadelphia

www.connallfoley.com
3731411,
3731411-1




Jupe 15, 2016
Page 2

ul:

analysis done by the Tax Abatement. Commtttee was done on the correct unit and correct
pro;ect As such, the validity of the ta¥ é‘batement ttself IS/ not in question.

| accept full responsibility for the error in the Ordmance and Financial Agreement as |l am
responsible for knowing my client's property address and should be able to properly conflrm that
it is correct prior to the adoption of an Ordinance by the Municipal Council.

The error does create a cloud on the Fmanc:ai Agreement and Jourha! Square Lofts
Urban Renewal, LL.C may not be able to obtain financing for the construction and stabilization of
the Pro;ect unless the Financial Agreement is corrected.

As such, | respectfully request the City Council adopt an Ordinanice authorizing an
address and unat number correction and a Replacement Financial Agreement with the correct
unit number and address.

Please find enclosed a draft Ordmance and a mark—up of those pages of the Financial
- Agreement which require correct:on |

Again, my apologies for the inconvenience to the Law Department, the Administration,
and the City Council regarding this matter.

It would be greatly apprepiated n’ thls Ordmanoe could be listed on the City Council
agenda for the June 29, 2016 City | Oounczl meetmg T

Verytruly yours
James C. cCan Esq.
n Behalf oftheFrm
JCM/mg-
Encs.

cc: Council. President Rolando R. Lavarro, Jr. (w/encs. via hand delivery)
Marcos Vigil, Deputy Mayor (w/o encs. via hand delivery) '
Jeremy Farrell, Esq., Corporation Counsel {w/encs. via hand delivery)
Journal Square Lofts Urban Renewal, LLC, Attn.. Matt Wemre:ch (w/encs. via e-mail)

373141141




City Clerk File No. Ord. 16.108

Agenda No. 3.E st Reading

Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL. AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE  16.108

TITLE:

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING AMENDMENTS
TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE — CHAPTER 345-31H - HISTORIC DISTRICT CHECKLIST —
TO ADD DIGITAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS.

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council, pursuant to NJISA 40:55D-62, may adopt or amend a zoning ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council adopted the Land Development Ordinance, Chapter 345 of the Code of the City of Jersey City, on
Aprit 11, 2001, (Ordinance No. 01-042}, and several amendments since then; and

WHERFEAS, Chapter 345-31H regulates the application checklist for Historie Districts; and

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council, earlier this year, adopted digital submission for checklists used for applications befors the Planning
Beard and Zoning Board of Adjustment; and

WHEREAS, digital submission of development applications will facilitate record keeping and provide greater access to public
documents; and

WHEREAS, the Municipal Couneil, pursuant to NTSA 40:55D-64, has sought and received the recommendations of the Jersey City
Planning Board relative to these issues; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Board at its meeting of March 22, 2016 did vote to recommend that the Mumnicipal Council adopt these
amendments to Chapter 345-31H of the Land Development Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the amendments to the Land Development Ordinance are attached hereto and made a part hereof; and are available for
public inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NI;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City that the Land Development Ordinance,
be and hereby is amended as per the attached document;

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT:

A. Al ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed,

B. This ordinance shail be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and set forth fully herein. The City Clerk shali have this
ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code.

C. This ordinence shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided by law.

D. The City Clerk and the Corporation Council be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapier numbers, article
numbers and section mumbers in the event fhat the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers
and the existing code, in arder to avoid confusion and possible repealers of existing provisions.

E. The City Planning Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the hearing on the adoption of this Ordinance to
the Hudson County Planning board and to all other persons entitled therato pursuant to N.I.S. 40:35D-15 and N.3.S. 40:55D-63 (if
required). Upon the adoption of this Ordinance after public hearing thereon, the City Clerk is directed to publish notice of the passage
thereof and to file a copy of the Ordinance as finally adopted with the Hudson County Planning Board as required by N.J.5, 40:55D-16.
The clerk shall also forthwith transmit a copy of fijs Ordinanee after final passage o the Municipal Tax Assessor as required by N.I.S.

40:49-2.1, _
o (L
Maryann Bucci-(?@br, AICP, PP, Acting Director
Division of City Planning

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED: ey el

APPROVED:

Corporation Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Required [
Not Required O




Amendments to Chapter 345-31.h - Historic District Checklist
As presented to the Planning Board on March 22, 2016

The following text is to be added to the Historic District Checklist. The name is to he amended to
read, Jersey City Historic Preservation Commission Checklist For Certificate of Appropriateness.
e Text to be added is bold and highlighted like this.
e Text to be deleted is strikethrough and highlighted fke-this:

Submitted  Waiver Remarks
Paper Documentation YES NO N/A Requested  (Stafi Only)
1. Completed application form
2. Application Fee
3—Eserow
4-Completed-Eacrow Forms; ifapplieable:
5.3, Twelve-sets-ef Signed and sealed architectural drawings, if
applicable, with colors and materials clearly noted. (13 Sets)
6- 4, Twelve sets-of Appropriate skeiches indicating all proposed materials
& colors, if architect's drawing ate not required. (13 Sets)
Z 5. All materials & color specifications, including, but not
limited 1o, applicable catalog culs, detailed drawings or
photos, sample paini chips, brick & mottar samples and specifications ,
window and door specifications (including manufacturer & model }
ete. (13 Sets)
8.6, Gurrant, detailed color phoios of existing fagade(s) expesed-to-publis
vigw (13 Sels)
9.7. Copy of Tax Assessor's 1938 pholo, #ret-akeady-en
—file- {13 Sets)
46:8. Detaited description of propesed work,
11. Asto any development parcel or part thereof that is now traversed or has
been traversed within the tast fifty (50} years by a railroad and which parcel
is the subjsct of an ordinance authorizing the acquisition of the parcel by
the City for a public purpose, the applicant must submit proof of the
abandonment of ihe railroad use or thet an abandcnment is not required
under the Interstate Commerce Gommission Termination Act, 49 U.S.C.
10501, or other applicable federal or state law.
Submitted Walver Remarks
Digital Submission Yes No NA  Reguested  (jor staf enly)

1. Digital Submission - the following shail be submitted at least 10 days
prior to the scheduled hearing for a Certificate of Appropriateness:
A} One (1) digital PDF of the full plan representing an exact copy of
the application to be presented at the scheduled hearing.
(1} The PDF shall be a direct export from AutoCAD or similar
program. Scanned copies are not accepiable,
(2) The PDF file shall include all of the following, i applicable:

(a) Certificate of Appropriateness application with
case number

(b} architectural and engineering plans preferably
24" x36"

{¢) All materials and colors specifications as
previousty detailed in the paper documentation
checklist

{d) current color photos and 1938 tax photograph

(e} professional reports (i.e. engineer's report)

(3} The PDF file shall be labeled {named} as follows:

Case number - Block.lot - Address - Application Type.pdf

{as assigned by the Historic Preservation Officer)

Example: H00-001 - 12101.1 - 555 Washington St. - Rear

Yard Addition.pdf




RESOLUTION FACT SHEET — NON-CONTRACTUAL
This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution,

Full Tiﬂe of Ordinance/Resolution

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING
AMENDMENTS TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE — CHAPTER 345-31H -
HISTORIC MSTRICT CHECKLIST --TO ADD DIGITAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS.

Initiator
Department/Division | HEDC City Planning
Name/Title Maryann Bucei-Carter, PP, AICP Director
Matt Ward, PP, AICP 3 c/p Senior Planner
Phone/email 201-547-5010 mearter@icnl.org
mwardijcni.org

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to couneil meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Resolution Purpose

This Ordinance wili amend § 345-311 of the Land Development Ordinance to require digital submission of
development applications that are scheduled before the Historic Preservation Commission. A previous ordinance
adopted earlier this year required digital submissions of plans for all other development application checklist,
This ordinancs is simply a correction to bring uniformity to procedures for digital submissions and benefit
record keeping division-wide, There are also some general housekeeping updates to the overall checklist.

1 certify that all thefacts presented herein are accurate.

ey 4@&‘&

Sig;LMre of Di




SUMMARY STATEMENT

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING
AMENDMENTS TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE — CHAPTER 345-31H - 31H - HISTORIC
DISTRICT CHECKLIST —TO ADD DIGITAL SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS.

This Ordinance will amend § 345-311 of the Land Development Ordinance to require digital submission
of development applications that are scheduled before the Historic Preservation Cominission. A previous
ordinance adopted earlier this year required digital submissions of plans for all other development
application checklist. This ordinance is simply a correction to bring uniformity to procedures for digital
submissions and benefit record keeping division-wide. There are also some general housekeeping updates
to the overall checklist.




City Clerk File No. Ord. 16.109
Agenda No. 3.F 1st Reading
Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage
ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.
COUNCIL AS AWHOLE

offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 16.108

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 332 (VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC) ARTICLE IIX
(PARKING, STANDING AND STOPPING) AMENDING SECTION 332-22 (PARKING PROHIBITED
AT ALL TIMES) OF THE JERSEY CITY CODE DESIGNATING 240 FEET ON THE NORTH SIDE
OF LAIDLAW AVENUE WEST OF SUMMIT AVENUE; 315 FEET ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF
LAIDLAW AVENUE WEST OF SUMMIT AVENUE; 60 FEET ON THE WEST SIDE OF SUMMIT
AVENUE NORTH OF LAIDLAW AVENUE AND 125 FEET ON THE WEST SIDE OF SUMMIT
AVENUE NORTH OF JEFFERSON AVENUE AS NO PARKING ANY TIME

TITLE:

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:

1. Chapter 332 (Vebicles and Traffic) Article IIl (No Parking Any Time) of the Jersey City Code is hereby supplemented as follows:

Section 332-22 PARICING PROHIBITED AT ALL TIMES

No person shall park a vehicle an any of the streets or parts thereof described.
Side

Name of Street Limits

Laidlaw Av Collard St 222 feet east
Summit Av 95 feet west

35 feet west of Summit Av 240 feet west

North

South 35 feet west of Suminit Av 315 fest west

Summit Av East Academy St to Rock St

Baldwin Av o Montgomery St
Communipaw Av to Fairmount Av

200 feet south of Sip Av 118 feet south
Route 139 te Howie Finlc Way

135 feet south of Magnolia Av 94 feet south

368 feet south of Sip Av 76 fect south

Fairmount Av to Baldwin Av

Montgomery St fo Sip Av

118 feet south of Magnolia Av 105 feet south

Pavonia Av to Van Reipen Av

Route 139 to Beacon Av

35 feet north of Lajdlaw Av 60 feet north

Projected northerly curb line of Jefferson Av 90 feet north

145 feet north of projected northier]ly curb line of Jefferson Av 35 fegt north
101 feet south of Paterson St 25 feet south

West

2. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. '

3, This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and incorporated in the official cepies of the Jersey City
Cade.

4. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter numbers, article
numbers and section aumbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that theré is a conflict between those numbers
and the existing code, in order to avoid confusicn and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions,

NOTE: All material to be inserted is upderscored,

IDS:pel AFPPROVED: ——
(06.15.16) Director gfTraffic & Yranspprtation ;
N
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPRO . ?\ - o ()&.s_'
Municipal Engi eer\J

APPROVED: !

Corporation Counsel Business Administrator

Certification Required O
Not Required 00




ORDINANCE FACT SHEET — NON—CONTMCTUAL
This sunmary sheet is to be aftached to the front of any ordinance that is submitted for Courcil consideration,
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the resolution. '

Full Title of Ordinance

AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 332 (VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC) ARTICLE I}
(PARKING, STANDING AND STOPPING) AMENDING SECTION 332-22 (PARKING PROHIBITED
AT ALL TIMES) OF THE JERSEY CITY CODE DESIGNATING 240 FEET ON THE NORTH SIDE
OF LAIDLAW AVENUE WEST OF SUMMIT AVENUE; 315 FEET ON THE SOUTH SIDE OF
LAIDLAW AVENUE WEST OF SUMMIT AVENUE; 60 FEET ON THE WEST SIDE OF SUMMIT
AVENUE NORTH OF LAIDLAW AVENUE AND 125 FEET ON THE WEST SIDE OF SUMMIT
AVENUE NORTH OF JEFFERSON AVENUE AS NO PARKING ANY TIME

Initiator
Department/Division | Administration Engineering, Traffic and Transportation
Wame/Title Toao D*Souza at the request of Greg Kierce, Director of Traffic & Transportation
Director of the Office of Emergency
Management
Phone/email 201.547.4470 JOAO@jenj.org’

Note: Initiator must be available by phane during agenda meeting (Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 poamn.}

Ordinance Purpose

The “no parking” areas will accomnmodate emergency vehicle access near the OEM headquarters.

There have been a significant number of commuter vehicles parking in this area creating an issue for
apparatus operators to enter and depart the facility. With the opening of the new middle school 3 on Summit
“Avenue this situation may only get worse. C

This location is a fuel depot which is heavily utilized by various size FD apparatus and PI> vehicles on a 24/7
basis. Frequently vehicle operators are challenged to maneuver around vehicles parked adjacent to the
entrance/exit gates or across from the exit gate potentially delaying responses to emergency calls.

I certify }at ail the facts presented herein are accurate.

| A E/08 /g,

Qctm%’frﬁ fic Transpon'tat'i__oﬂ . Dat
Signature of }@nment Director Date




Jetse! iy Fmargency,




vo wm»

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED:

City Clerk File No. Ord. 16.110

Agenda No. 3.6 1st Reading

Agenda No. 2nd Reading & Final Passage

ORDINANCE
OF
JERSEY CITY, N.J.

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance:

CITY ORDINANCE 16.110

TITLE: ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING
* AMENDMENTS TO THE VILLAGE REDEVELOPMENT PLAN TO PERMIT APARTMENT BUILDINGS
ONBLOCK 12701, JOTS §, 9, 10 AND 12

WHEREAS, the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City adopted the Viilage Redevelopment Plan in Jannary 1980,
amended the Plan multiple times, most recently en May 13, 2015; and

WHEREAS, apartment buildings are currently permitted in this plan directiy across First Strest on Block 11110; and
WHEREAS, the majority of the Village Redevelopment Area was redeveloped as one- and two-family rowhomes; and,

WHEREAS, an objective of the plan is to provide for a variety of residential uses and housing types for both existing residents
and prospective new occupants; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Board, at its meeting of June 14, 2016, determined that the Village Redevelopment Plan would
benefit from an amendment to permit apartment buildings on Block 12701, Lots 8, 9, 10, and 12; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City that the Village Redevelopment
Plan, be and hereby is amended as follows (material indicated by strikethrough like this is existing material that is infended to be
deleted. Material indicated by bold italic like this is new material that is intended to be enacted.);

VIL.A.b. Permitted Principal Uses

- Townhouses, except on Newark Avenue

- 3 fafnily dwelling cn corner lots.

- Apartment butldings, limited to block 11110 and on block 12701, lots 8, 8, 18 and 12.

- Retail sales, Medical Offices, restaurants (categorias one and two), and/or Professional Offices and related
services required on the ground floor and permitted on the 2™ floor of Apartment Buildings on Newark
Avenue. Ground floor frontage is prohibited cn First Street on block 11110, Retoil sales, Medical Offices,
restaurants (categories one and two), and/or Professional Offices and related services are permitted in

Apartment Bulldings on block 12701,

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT:

All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Cods as though codified and set forth fully herein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance
codified and incorporated in the official copies of the Jersey City Code.

This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as provided hy law,

The City Clerk and the Corporation Council be and they are hereby authorized and directed fo change any chapler numbers, article numbers and
section numbers in the event thaf the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the existing code,
In order to avoid confusion and possible repealers of existing provisions.

The City Planning Division is hereby directed to give notice at least ten days prior to the hearing on the adoption of this Ordinance to the Hudson
County Planning board and to all other persons entitled thereto pursuant to N.JI.S. 40:55D-15 and N.I.S, 40:55D-63 (if required). Upon the adoption
of this Ordinance after public hearing thereon, the City Clerk is directed to publish notice of the passage thereof and to file a copy of the Ordinance
as finally adopted with the Hudson County Planning Board as required by N.J.S. 40:55D-16. The clerk shail also forthwith transmit a copy of this

Ordinance after final passage to the Municipal Tax Assessor as required by N.ILS, 40:49-2,1, %\pk
Gy

Maryann Bugei=Cart r,AI@P PP Act]ng Director
ity Planning

T
APPROVED:

Corparation Counsel Business Administrafor

Certification Required [
Not Required O




RESOLUTION FACT SHEET — NON-CONTRACTUAL _
This semmary sheet is to be attached to the front of any resolution that is submitted for Council consideration.
Incomplete or vague fact sheets will be returned with the reselution.

Full Tiile of Ordinance/Resolution

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY ADOPTING
AMENDMENTS TO THE VILLAGE REDEVELOPMENT PLAN TO PERMIT APARTMENT
BUILDINGS ON BLOCK 12701, LOTS 8,9, 10 AND 12

Initiator
Department/Division | HEDC : City Planning
Name/Title Maryann Bucci-Carter, PP, ’AICP F) Director
Matt Ward, PP, AICP /772 ><_| Senior Planncr
Phone/email 201-547-501¢ ) maryannb@jonj.org / mward@jcnj.crg

Note: Initiator must be available by phone during agenda meeting {Wednesday prior to council meeting @ 4:00 p.m.)

Resolution Purpose

The proposed amendments revise the permitted principal uses in the Village Redevelopment Plan. The
Planning Board recommend amendments to permit apartment buildings on Block 12701 Lots 8, 9, 10 and 12,
Permitting an apartment building will allow one of the last remaining sites in the Village Redevelopment Plan
1o be built out as a multifamily building with elevator access and off-street parking hidden from view from a
public right-of-way. The amendment also permits ground floor retail on this site where it currently exists.

1 cjﬁy?t all the facts presented hercin are accurate.
(q’/‘ d ﬂ/\f ko l L-()
Signatur

e/(’if igis'on Director Date

/- — bib //6

L il e
Signature of De’partmen@%ector Date

GAREPLANSYVillage\Amd 11 - 06142016 apts on comers\Couneil - 'TO DOWact Sheet R-2.docx




Department of Housing, Economic Development & Commerce ﬁ
Division of City Planning =

Inter-Office Memorandum

DATE: 6/16/2016
TO: Council President Lavarro, Anthony Cruz, Maryann Bucci-Carter

FROM: Matt Ward, PP, AICP

SUBJECT: Village Redevelopment Plan amendments

The proposed amendments revise the permitted principal uses in the Village Redevelopment
Plan. The Planning Board recommend amendments to permit apartment buildings on Block
12701 Lots 8, 9, 10 and 12. Permitting an apartment building will allow one of the last
remaining sites in the Village Redevelopment Plan to be built out as a multifamily building with
elevator access and off-street parking hidden from view from a public right-of-way.

This site is located at the corner of Coles Street and First Street. Currently, this site is
developed as a surface parking lot and a small mixed-use building with ground floor retail -
Hudson County Arts Supply. Because of the existing ground floor retail and proximity to
Newark Avenue, this amendment also permits ground floor retaif on this site. Also, apartment
buildings are under construction across First Street on Block 11110.

This amendment was presented by a representative of the property owner, Jeff Zak, to the
Viltage Neighborhood Association (VNA) earlier this year. No objections to the amendment
were communicated to the Division of City Planning or Planning Board by the VNA. The Ward E
Councilperson was also updated of this amendment request.

Amendments received a favorable recommendation from the Planning Board at the June 14,
2016 meeting.




Summary Sheet:

ORDINANCE OF THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY
CITY ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE VILLAGE REDEVELOPMENT
PLAN TO PERMIT APARTMENT BUILDINGS ON BLOCK 12701, LOTS 8,9,
10 AND 12

The proposed amendments revise the permitted principal uses in the Village
Redevelopment Plan. The Planning Board recommend amendments to permit
apartment buildings on Block 12701 Lots 8, 3, 10 and 12. Permitting an apartment
building will allow one of the last remaining sites in the Village Redevelopment Plan to
be built out as a multifamily building with elevator access and off-street parking hidden
from view from a public right-of-way. The amendment also permits ground floor retail
on this site.




